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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Turnover
Gross profit
Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation
Total borrowings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Average capital employed (note 6)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Staff costs
Net asset attributable to owners
of the Company per share (HKS) (note /)

Bt % Financial ratios

JERE AR (H7t2) Return on capital employed (note 2)

BN K (M5t 3) Current ratio (note 3)

REN K (H7E4) Quick ratio (note 4)

BELER(MES) Gearing ratio (note 5)

BifsT Note:

I BRART YN 3 L. Net asset attributable
ZIN = BEA - BEf to owners of the
ElEFEEE EinkEm RIABE Company per share

1 ERERDR - MBRAERoF - THERER 2 Return on capital

EREHNRT (Hiits) employed

3. RBHE = RBEE + RBAR 3. Current ratio

4 EBLE = (hPEE-HE) + nDAR 4 Quickratio

5 BfEtE - EEgE = ARFE 5. Gearing ratio

BEA
[ElbEE
6. THERRER = [(BREE+FRPEN)+ 6. Average capital

(LFRREE+ LFARDEN)) -2

employed

2014 2015 2016
2,699,950 2,616,696 2,436,821
263,275 244910 291,426
90,894 75,469 76,024
220,340 195,743 223,467
[,714,807 1,624,876 1,601,885
2,267,778 2,183518 2,124,905
3,050,561 2,906,355 2,849,457
16,095 7,530 15,100
98,163 89,368 92,076
0519 0.500 0.486
7.2% 6.7% 7.8%
[.25 [.13 1.24
1.07 0.99 1.17
76% 74% 75%
Equity attributable Number of
0 owners ~—  issued shares
of the Company at year end
Eamings before interest, tax, ~—  Average capital
depreciation and amortisation employed (note 6)

Current assets =+ Current liabilities

(Current assets - Inventories) =+ Current liabiltties

Total borrowings =~ Equity attributable
to owners of the

Company

[(Total equity + non-current borrowing) +

(last year total equity + last year non-current borrowing)] = 2
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BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group"”) for the year ended 3| December 2016 is

summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2016, the Group's turnover for the year 2016 amounted
to HK$2,436.82 million as compared to that of 2015 of HK$2,616.70 million,
representing HK$179.88 million, or 6.9%, decrease in turnover; the profit
before taxation for the year amounted to HK$91.69 million as compared to
that of 2015 of HK$74.85 million, representing HK$16.84 million, or 22%,
increase in profit. The turmover for the year comprised sale of wind energy
related products of HK$1,785.68 million, sale of electricity generated from
wind farm of HK$24.99 million, sale of rare-earth permanent magnet motor
products of HK$21.61million, sale of energy storage and related products of
HK$541.33 million and sales of HK$63.21 million related to telecommunication
business whereas that of 2015 comprised sale of wind energy related products
of HK$1,893.04 million, sale of electricity generated from wind farm of
HK$23.56 million, sale of rare-earth permanent magnet motor products of
HK$34.29 million, sale of energy storage and related products of HK$555.55
million and sales of HK$110.26 million related to telecommunication business.

The decrease in turmover for the year from that of last year was mainly due
to the decrease in sales of the Group's wind energy related products by
HK$107.36 million, or 5.7% year-on-year, equivalent to decrease in sales by
I'l sets of 2MW excitation wind turbine units. The increase in profit before
taxation was mainly attributable to the drop of the costs of the wind turbine
units sold under strict cost control, leading to the rise of gross profit by 4%.
The return on capital employed for the year and 2015 are 7.8% and 6.7%

respectively, representing | 6% increase.
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Business of Wind Energy

In 2016, the directdrive wind turbine developed by the Group with
proprietary intellectual property rights features its strengths: simple structure,
high reliability, high efficiency and low operation and maintenance costs. In
the course of elimination in terms of production capacity, enhancement of
technology and quality, the wind energy market in China entered into the
phase of rational development with growth rate of over 10% per annum. In
winning highly regarded recognition from wind farm developers in the industry,
the Group continued to give full play to the advantages of technology, quality
and service of Aerospace directdrive wind turbines. On this basis, the Group
capitalised on its products’ leading edge and achieved cost control by adopting
the strategy of technology enhancement and batch production through
research and development, thereby achieving high supply chain performance
and enhanced cost effectiveness to proactively address challenges. Through
Inner Mongolia Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant, and Gansu Wind
Turbine General Assembling Plant, the Group realised batch productions of
a number of self-developed models (especially 2MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind turbine), and adopted the strategy of establishing good
relationship with several provincial and autonomous regions’ governments
to gain their supports and leveraging on provincial and autonomous regions’
quotas for wind energy to obtain more wind resources in seeking more
production orders for wind turbines, thereby increasing our market share. At
present, the Group has considerable wind energy resources in various major
wind power bases planned by the State, including Wulatehougi and Baotou
City in Inner Mongolia, Jiuguan City and Wuwei City in Gansu, Ningde City
in Fujian, Tieling City and Yingkou City in Liaoning, Suihua City in Heilongjiang
and Tangshan City and Zhangjiakou City in Hebei. In particular, an approval
on a |,000MW wind farm project in Pakistan under the effort on exploitation
has been successfully obtained. All of these would push sales of wind turbines

effectively and bring in promising income to the Group continually.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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In 2016, the marketing strategy was that of exchanging resources for orders,
developing and maintaining key areas and key customers, plus that of
participating in market competition as well as pursuing the exploitation of
international market and the interationally specialised project cooperation in

effort to expand the sales regions and increase our sales efforts.

The Group had formulated market development strategies for key regions
and key customers. As of to date, in terms of customers, the Group has
established more stable and secure business relationship with large power
companies which have become our key customers. In terms of sales regions,
the Group has made substantial progress in the key regions of Inner Mongolia,

Gansu and Liaoning, paving a solid foundation for future developments.

Since the directdrive wind turbines are characterised by gearless drive, the
use of low-speed large-torque generators, full-power convertor and strong
resistance to grid voltage fluctuations, their advantages include low wear and
tear, high efficiency of electricity generation, small size, light weight, easy to
maintain and low operating cost when compared with the traditional wind
turbines. As such, the directdrive wind turbines, in particular, the 1.5MW and
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines being launched mainly
by the Group have visible optimism in the market. In addition, the AC-DC-
AC total inverter grid-connection technology employed by directdrive wind
turbines can allow the grid companies to meet the standards under the
“Design regulations for grid-connection technology of large-scale wind farms”
issued by National Energy Administration in 201 I, which provides a series of

requirements such as low-voltage ride-through, grid compatibility and power

test, bringing rare opportunities to the Group's wind turbine business.
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In 2016, 188 sets of 2MW permanent-magnet directdrive wind turbine were
sold, including 38 sets to the Tangshan Nanpu Project in Hebei Province; 25
sets to the Damaogi Project in Inner Mongolia; 25 sets to the Chayougiangi
Project in Inner Mongolia; 25 sets to the Taiyuan Project in Guazhou Town,
Gansu Province; 25 sets to the Xuanhua Project, Hebei Province; and 25 sets
to the First Wind Farm Project and 25 sets to the Third Wind Farm Project of
Songshan Tan, Tianzhu County, Wuwei City, Gansu Province; as well as 8 sets
of 3MW permanent magnet directdrive wind turbines to the Tangshan Nanpu
Project in Hebei Province. In addition, 24 sets of 900KW excitation magnetic
wind turbines were exported.

In particular, the 3MW permanent magnet directdrive wind turbine prototype
under the Group's independent research and development, after being subject
to a full year of the wind field assessment, received a complete success in
that the first batch of small quantities of 8 sets of 3MW had been set up in
Tangshan Nanpu wind farm, adding a main model for the Group's exploitation

of domestic and overseas wind turbine markets.

Research and Development of Technology

In December 2015, the technology as to 3MW permanent magnet directdrive
wind turbine, hoisted in Daxipo wind farm in Xinghe County, Inner Mongolia
in December 2015 under research and development, was being optimised
in 2016. With a sleek, beautiful and graceful appearance design, the wind
turbine not only minimises air friction of the unit, but also increases the overall
aerodynamic performance and reduces the load of parts and components
with lower production cost. The unit features a rotary of 120m in diameter
and a wheel centre of 95m in height, allowing the wind energy utilisation to
reach over 97%. Besides its high power, this wind turbine has innovative design
on safety and maintainability, making readiness for managing in attracting more

customers' appeal. At present, small batch production of this wind turbine was

ready.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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on design evaluation, indicating the technology concepts
and performance in line with the design requirements.
This attainment of the type certification of the high powered self-developing
wind turbine unit marked a milestone achievement in that the Group's design
capacity on its research and development elevated manifestly, ensuring the

important technology strength for the expansion of market.

Energy Storage Business

Whilst maintaining the leading position in wind energy technology, the Group
has been actively nurturing a new core major business from the research and
development of a series of wind and solar energy storage products and a
series of distributed energy storage system products and extends the industrial
chain to a distributed energy renewal solutions by combining wind energy,
solar energy and energy storage subtly in providing customers with more

flexible and reliable energy solutions.

In May 2012, the Group initiated the research and development on graphene
materials and lithium battery of high storage capacity. Cooperative research
and development agreements were signed with international and domestic
renowned experts and teams in order to achieve mass production of high
quality graphene by leveraging on the graphene extraction technology
mastered by them and conducted research and development on new
graphene-based cathode material for batteries and high capacity lithium battery
in order to launch a series of energy storage products with an integrated
system based on high capacity lithium batteries. In 2013, international
renowned experts were invited by the Group to join the Energy Storage
Technology Research and Development Centre and effectively commenced

the research and development on graphene and energy storage system.



e a0
BUSINESS REVIEW

EMEE - FHEBREEEE AAELE
AR EEENE  ENERERENSFAE
moRAK FEFNAEREMBLEENTE - 8
B ERRAK — R BN E) HE B
MEEED  ZEOBEANEEHTENED
B8 HETARERERSG - KEEHH
EREHIEBMARERES  HETEEE
AFERFNBELDEREAANREER T AL
B HPREEENRANBREEREE 0L
Em Bok HEER—KEAELH
130% Ak EEMEMBREMNEELL —
RBEMEZ30% - ZEDEERINETCWESD
THIZGF - BEEMNEMEIKERRESE
B EEREEGIER -

R - X% - REREEBRHENE B
FREBRBRR  ZERABERERIEAET
HBRAY  SEMEENER  BIHEM
BE BEEEMRE  EERAHBEE -

W016%F  AEERSHEBES BB - A
BmIE - BERAGRE  ERRNBDNELH
AR NMEFCAHTE  RAKFRIIBRE
RORBRBNEN - | 2BLHRELERD
RBiEED -

A lithium iron phosphate battery had been developed. Applying this battery
in assembling battery packs of variable pitch could enable the packs not to
be replaced for 5 years. Meanwhile, the anode and cathode materials and
electrolyte being researched and developed in the laboratory have formed a
dynamic lithium iron phosphate battery of excellent performance, which will
be applied to electric cars and electric bicycles, developing a large-capacity
energy storage system. In relying on our edges in electrical control and system
integration, a battery management system with container-type energy storage
system and a grid connection device for the energy storage system have been
developed, where the lithium iron phosphate battery utilised in the energy
storage battery has a high energy ratio and long utilisation life. Its energy ratio
amounts to 130% of those of commercial batteries for general usage, and the
electrical energy released by battery of the same weight is 30% more than an
ordinary battery. The product will be utilised in the control system relating to
recovery of rocket parafoils in supplying electrical energy for the recovery of

satellites and rockets in its employment in military areas.

Meanwhile, another new type of street lighting system with complementary
wind energy and solar energy based on a lithium battery energy storage system
has been developed. The scope of applications of the system may extend to
unmanned communication base stations, data transmission by high voltage
wire towers, boundary outposts, islands, remote areas with no electricity, etc.

and may even connect to power grid for electricity generation.

In 2016, the Group steadily progressed the test and pre-industrialization of the
cathode and anode materials of the lithium battery, modified natural graphite,
electrolyte as well as the power battery, and took the technology lead in the
graphene power battery domestically, with the demonstration production line

reaching the batch production capacity of 120 million Ah.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

11



12

e
BUSINESS REVIEW

B -1

AEEEH MR RE - BLEBRERZERR
ZEBTMRBALRE - RETARBRF X IE
[MARXFERETR]—BERBIE - 300MW
BWREIEE - 180MWH) K F5 8218 B F130MwW
FRRETA B o E A 300MW B E HEM50MW ¥
REEBEEC2EAIEL -

Wind and solar power storage integration

The objective of the Group is to apply street lamps relating to wind and solar
power storage integration in many municipal lighting projects in cities. The
Phase One Project of the "Aerospace Demonstration Works relating to Wind
and Solar Power Projects” as supported by People’s Government of Wuwei
includes a 300MW wind energy project, a |80MW solar energy project and
a 30MW storage project, where the construction as to the 300MW wind
energy project and the 50MW photovoltaic power generation project had

already been commenced in full scope.
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Electric vehicles market

The Group is committed to the exploitation of electric vehicle market which
has achieved significant breakthroughs. The key technologies in electric vehicles
include vehicle, motor, battery, control and driving system as well as charging
point system, where main technical bottlenecks that restrict the development
of electric vehicles are the performances of batteries and vehicle control
system, which, however, are the Group’s advantages and features. The Group
placed a strong emphasis on developing markets, such as Tangshan of Hebei,
Tongzhou district of Beijing, Shenzhen of Guangdong as well as Shandong,
Guangxi, Shenyang and Dalian of Liaoning, grasping the development

opportunities of new energy cars in the international market.
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As the performance of high-capacity lithium batteries launched by the technical

team of the Company and CALT, and an international expert reaches |60Wh/
kg, exceeding market level of 130Wh/kg, and the “four in one” vehicle control
system launched by us could place motor driver, vehicle controller, high
voltage distribution box and DC power switching device in one control box,
the batteries feature comprehensive functions and high level of integration.
The electric buses installed with the Group's batteries and control systems
are capable of running over 300 km mileage per charge. Exactly thanks to this
edge, the Group has made major breakthroughs in promoting electric vehicle

market, in particular the market of electric buses and proven track record.

In 2016, the capability as to design and production of the battery pack
peripherals of the electric vehicle was strengthened in that the established
goal relating to the self-developed design and production of the powered-
battery system for electric vehicles was completed, paving the foundation for
developing the capacity of the whole set of battery peripheral and of system

solution.

In 2016, 104MW photovoltaic equipment was sold under the photovoltaic
and energy storage businesses, comprising 20MW equipment to Kenuo
Project, 84MW equipment to Nan Tong Project. In addition, a total of 37 sets
of new energy batteries were sold, comprising 34 sets to Beiqi Futian Project,
| set to Ankai Vehicle, | set to UGE and | set to Fujian Yi Dongli.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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In February 2016, the Company and Hefei Guoxuan High-Tech Power Energy
Co., Ltd. (“Guoxuan Hitech™), which ranked the third in the current power
battery industry, entered into a Strategic Cooperative Framework Agreement
("Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the
Company and Guoxuan Hitech will rely on the tremendous market of new
energy vehicles in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei and will establish a joint-venture
company in Tangshan, mainly engaging in research and development and
manufacture of power battery, research and development and application
of graphene material, as well as the application and promotion of energy
storage products in military and civil areas. The name of the joint-venture
company is Energine Guoxuan (Tangshan) New Energy Technology Co,, Ltd.
whose shareholding Guoxuan Hitech will hold 519 and China Energine 49%.
In assimilating the market demand, the power battery product capacity of the

joint-venture company is planned to reach | billion Ah.

Both parties will jointly develop the graphene material and its application
technology, focusing on the applications of graphene in power battery as
driven by the market demand to build up more extensive development of the
industry chain and innovation platform in exploitation of new energy vehicle
market. The joint venture will strengthen the research and development and
application of military energy storage product, stressing on promoting power
battery application on military vehicles and military ships and boats. Both
parties will commence cooperation with new energy whole-vehicle enterprises
for joint pursuit of research and development, market exploitation, and capital
co-operation on battery sets relating to electric logistic vehicles, transport

vehicles, taxi and other specialised vehicles.

Wind Farm Operations

The Group's wind farm operations comprise a wind farm controlled and
operated by the Group: the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm of Liaoning
Benxi, installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
24,650KW; three wind farms invested and constructed by the Group: the
Jilin Tongyu wind farm of Jilin Longyuan, installed with 236 sets of 850KW
wind turbines with a capacity of 200,000KWV; the Jiangsu Rudong wind farm
of Jiangsu Longyuan, installed with 100 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines with a
capacity of 150,000KW and the Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm of Inner
Mongolia Xinghe, installed with 55 sets of 900KW directdrive wind turbines
with a capacity of 49,500KW.
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In addition, Energine Min Jian New Energy Investment Co., Ltd, the Group's

associated company, formally engaging in offshore and land wind power
projects in eastern Fujian through its subsidiary, Yingkou Wind Power
Generation Co, Ltd, secured market orders for the Group for the purchase

of 2MW directdrive wind turbine models produced by the Group.

Business of New Materials

Jiangsu Energine Technology Co. Ltd. (“Jiangsu Energine”), controlled and
operated by the Group, is a high-tech enterprise which specialises in the
research and development, manufacture, and sales of rare-earth permanent
magnet gearless traction machines for elevators. The “fiAEJR" branded
rare-earth permanent magnet gearless traction machines and its driving
control system researched and developed by the company itself had filled the
technological gap of the domestic gearless elevator sector. In 2016, Jiangsu
Energine proceeded business transformation and upgrade, succeeding in
equipping the “Three-Electric System” to various new energy car models, and

enabling them to be included into the national car model directory.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Wouxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co,, Ltd. (“Wuxi Generator Plant”),
the Group's associated company, is engaged in batch production of 900KW,
[.SMW and 2MW generators. Its self-developed |.5SMW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind power generator, with application of many new technologies,
was awarded the First Prize of Outstanding Contribution to Science and
Technology Progress in 201 | by CALT. Therefore, the Group is equipped
with the internal capacity to supply core parts and components of wind
turbines, including blades and generators, thereby reducing its reliance on
upstream suppliers of the wind turbine supply chain for purchasing generators
and controlling the supply risk of the wind turbine supply chain and production

Cost.

Business of Automotive Component Parts

Automotive engine management systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a joint
venture, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market with a stable market share, ranking the second nationwide
and supplies to almost all major domestic automobile manufacturers. As for
export sales, its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in Europe and
North America.
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The joint venture recorded sales revenue of HK$2.96 billion for the year 2016,
representing a decrease of HK$24 million year-on-year.

Quality, Environment, Occupational Health Management System

2016 was the first supervision and audit year after the Company had
obtained the certificate for the quality, environment, occupational health and
safety management system. The Company invariably stayed in an effective
operation under the “Three Standards” requirements. The environmental
factors and dangerous sources were effectively identified and controlled
when the products activities and services were being operated and delivered.
The management activities were in line with national laws, regulations and

standards, enabling the sustainable growth of the Company.

The Company formulated the objectives and management solutions relating

to environment and occupational health and safety for 2016.

(I) Environment protection objective:

The Company's centralised waste disposal rate in the Beijing head
office was 100% and the recycling rate of hazardous wastes was |100%.
Domestic wastes are disposed of by Wanyuan Properties according
to the agreement. Hazardous wastes, such as toner cartridges and ink

cartridges, were recycled by designated manufacturers.

During maintenance of turbines, all employees of the Engineering
Department on the wind farm were required to carry a plastic bag
for centralised disposal of wastes, such as disposed cloths and head
bands, when entering the towers for inspection. The wastes were then
collected in the booster station in the waste disposal areas designated
by the wind farm owners for their centralised disposal. The centralised

disposal rate could reach 100%.
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Adhering to reasonable utilisation and usage of public resources and
energy, the Company promoted the value of energy conservation and
the disgrace of wastage among its employees. Employees were required
to conserve public resources and energy to the full extent. A weekly
inspection system was established to ensure that expenses on resources
and energy consumption of the Beijing head office of the Company
were under strict control. Significant improvement in annual energy and
resources saving was made. According to the statistics of the Company,
total annual office power consumption per person decreased by 7.7%
compared with last year; annual consumption of bottled water per
person decreased by 5% compared with last year; total annual usage
of tap water per person decreased by 42.6% compared with last year;
total annual office consumption of paper per person increased by
24.9% compared with last year; and total annual fuel consumption on
corporate cars increased by 13.8% compared with last year.

Improvement in protection and maintenance of work environment:

According to procedures on monitoring the environment performance
and surveillance control formulated by the Company, the Department
of External Liaison is responsible for the supervision, surveillance and
inspection of the implementation and effectiveness of environmental
objectives, indices and management solutions. By filling the
“environmental performance inspection record”, the Department of
External Liaison timely rectified the problems identified during inspection
with precautionary measures, and conducted satisfactory survey on

workplace environment.
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RIRL 2 RUEEES I E Technical improvement measures and control on environmental safety:

20165 ARAIHE TET —H#IER In 2016, the Company formulated and refined several environment
B REEBITHIERETBRAERA protection and safety measures and replaced the light bulbs with
EITTHRSE FARERLEE energy-efficient alternatives in the Beijing head office. Interior plants
icEY  BR2HEERSR U2 were replaced to maintain a greener work environment. All the
HEMEE  BETIEE  FFE - R obsolete wiring boards were discarded. Besides, smoking was fully
5 BRURBRRAES - prohibited. These initiatives allowed the Company to realise its

philosophy of a clean office with “effective energy conservation, lower

energy consumption, less pollution and higher efficiency”.

(Z) BERERZBER: (I) Occupational health and safety objectives:
|+ ZTHRURGTEZRELEREL=RL 1. Accomplishing level two of corporate production safety
XEETHE standard in Beijing
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The safety standardisation management system developed by
the Company basically complies with the requirements set out in
the “Universal Standard of the Two-Level Review of Production
Safety Standardisation for the Manufacturing Industry in Beijing’".
The responsibilities of all functional departments were specifically
defined. These departments carried out production safety
standardisation activities in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. Letters of commitment to production
safety objectives were signed by departments of all levels. A
safety responsibility system in relation to all functions and levels
was established and regular inspections and assessments were
conducted. The objectives and measures of production safety
were implemented. The Group regularly organised various forms
of cultural activities and training programmes in relation to safety
in order to equip its employees with a stronger safety awareness
and facilitate the initial establishment of a safety culture system

within the Group.

The Group had a comprehensive safety and risk identification and
evaluation for its operating activities. The control measures were
effective and the safety equipment and protective facilities were
in compliance with the requirements of national standards and
regulations. With satisfactory production safety conditions, the
Group developed a work permit system for its direct operation
process to strictly monitor and ensure safety during direct

operation.

38
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In conclusion, during the standardization process of production
safety, the management of the Group stressed on its importance;
junior staff of all departments were allowed to play their roles
in production safety, the Group reinforced their knowledge,
awareness and operation skill on production safety in its pursuit
of better production safety standard.

In 2016, the Company had no fatality, serious injury and fire
accident and the number of staff with occupational disease was

Zero.

(1) Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Employees

In 2016, the Group successfully accomplished various human resources

related works in strict accordance with its major working requirements.

Besides, special attention was drawn to such human resource works

as involved in the three major systems in that rectifications and

improvements were made accordingly.

Recruitment: an aggregate of 24 staff were introduced to our
Group throughout the year, including 12 matured ones with
appropriate experiences, 2 graduates with overseas study
background and 10 graduates from domestic high education
institutions. Through intensified communication with the

development zone, our pressure from demand for non-Beijing-

based graduates was relieved effectively.
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Post qualification: review and authentication was completed
in relation to post qualification of 44 technology research &
development staff from our technology R&D center and energy
storage center. Also, the Group took the lead to organize and
complete the examination to accredit the post qualification of
64 technical staff relating to the first-line general assembling and
operation and maintenance services. Besides, it begun to explore
a quantitative review model regarding professional technology
posts. The Group was enabled to enhance staff's working
capability by leveraging on occupational development channels,
and to cultivate, build and nurture a group of elites with sufficient

technology strength through determination of post qualification.

Training: by introduction of external advantageous training
resources, nearly 120 employees were dispatched for
occupational training throughout the year. As for in-house
trainings, the Group offered its assistance to relevant departments
to complete 8 trainings serving for |15 person-time in total.
In addition, we have dispatched four selected young elites to
participate in the series of ideal belief trainings held by CALT. 28
employees succeeded to obtain certificates upon completion of
the special assignment training. Compared to the annual training
plan set at the beginning of this year, the completion rate against
the whole-year training plan reached 95%. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to increase closed-loop management in relation to
education and training, fully implementing trainings through
evaluation of training effects, consolidation of excellent training

courses and emphasis of effect-steering trainings.

Physical examination: certain specially customized physical
examinations were designed by the Group in implementing on
employee’s health check strictly. Physical examination percentage
and health management on our existing staff and first-line posts
reached 98%.
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Customers

Our customers wish the Group to provide high-quality and efficient
wind energy equipment to further support the development of new
energy industry. The products we offered will be able to prevent the
environment from pollutions of wastes and noise and to prevent the

adverse impact of safety hazards.

The Group ensured our products reaching 100% passing rate on the
assurance test on departing plant for delivery, and wind turbines in
wind farms reaching an average utilization rate of 97%, i.e. high standard
requirements for the product’s quality. In parallel, the Group strictly
controlled the product quality of its suppliers in stringently executing the

supplier evaluation and control program.

A dedicated service team is assigned to provide service and technical
support (ie. installation, operation, maintenance) for each project. We
have set latest response times in ensuring that customers' issues and
requirements are addressed promptly. Regular customer feedback
and satisfaction surveys are conducted where customer satisfaction is
required to be over 85%. We also guaranteed the supply of spare parts
to reduce the downtime occasioned from malfunction.
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Suppliers

The Group adopted the assessment and dynamic appraisal system for
qualified suppliers, and established a qualified supplier management
system. We communicated with the R&D Centre, adjusted the
configuration of the design of master control system of wind turbines,
and reduced the procurement cost and enhanced the performance
of products on the precondition of no compromise on the assured
performance. We also attracted the participation of suppliers via tender
and selected cheaper master control systems.

The Group released the annual review on suppliers in due course,
which was adopted as the important reference for determining the
annual procurement plan. Any update on development of suppliers
was effectively monitored, and any weaknesses on the supply chain
were alarmed as well. Over 10 new qualified suppliers providing key
components were timely sourced during the year, enriching the Group's
supply chain.

Confirmation and Upgrade of and Compliance with
Applicable Laws and Regulations

The Group has collected and studied such laws, regulations and
industrial standards as involved in its production and service procedure
in 2016. A total of 147 national and Beijing local laws, regulations and
standards were collected. The Group identified and implemented
relevant provisions set out in those laws and regulations, amended 10
technology standards thereof and deleted 2 inapplicable and void laws.

The Company made compliance review and established a compliance
review table accordingly, aiming to making sure that the Group
satisfied relevant laws and requirements during its production and
service procedure through such compliance review. The solid wastes
were gathered based on their categories for centralized treatment,
enabling the Group to prevent pollution. As for consumption of
energy resources, they were effectively managed by application of
energy conservation measures. Besides, safety education was increased
among its staff, helping them improve their awareness of environment
protection and occupation health safety risk. The Group has established
detailed operating rules in relation to phases of installment and
commissioning of wind turbines, safety risk prevention system and
emergency contingency plans, and carried out relevant rehearsals against
such contingency plans, to ensure that all the staff and related parties
can escape from any dangers in case of emergencies. Besides, the Group
organized physical examination for staff to ensure their health.
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Management and Control of Material Risks

The Company formulated risk management and control measures to manage
three material risks, namely financing risks, operational risks and research and
development risks, all of which had been assessed by the Group in 2016.
These measures minimised the occurrence of material risks and achieved the

risk management and control targets. The material risks are set out below:

I.  Financing Risks

As the Group further expanded the batch production of wind turbines
and continued to invest in research and development projects, including
2MW enhanced wind turbine, 3MW permanent magnet directdrive
wind turbine, energy storage system and efficient battery, its working
capital was mainly funded through external financing, resulting in a
relatively high gearing ratio. As such, there were certain financial risks

and operation risks.

2.  Operation Risks

The quality reliability of the units and parts relating to new models of
wind turbine units supplied from outsourced manufacturers needs time
for further inspection while the warranty periods of the contracts are
relatively long (5 vears). This is an operation risk to a certain extent.
The above risks are managed by the measures of the quality assurance
system on one hand, and through quality assurance terms with suppliers
and insurance mechanism in containing and shifting them away on the
other hand.

3.  Technology risks

In the course of research and development of the 3MW permanent
magnet direct drive wind turbine which is of ultra-high power, the
capability of key technology solutions shall be enhanced, and product
design evaluation and certification shall be strengthened to optimize

product performance.
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PROSPECTS

Due to consumption of huge amounts of traditional energy and demand for
environmental conservation, there will be basically no changes as to the rapid
growth of China's wind energy industry in the future. Currently, serious air
pollution has been spread as a national issue and becomes a stimulating or
driving force to the China government. The National Energy Administration
stated that during the “Thirteenth-Five” period, the wind power is expected
to gradually change the status of “alternative energy” and rises to pose as the
China main energy structural body in the future, providing an assurance on the

sustainable and healthy development of wind power.

As hazy weather and air pollution are worsening in China, China government
has increased the support for development of clean energy as well as policy
support thereon. In 2015, the consumption of non-fossil fuels continued
to rise to 12%. As pointed out by the director of the National Energy
Administration of China, China has entered into a strategic restructuring of
energy consumption in shifting from a heavy reliance on fossil fuels to increase
in demand for non-fossil fuels. There is an accelerating replacement of fossil
fuels by non-fossil ones, ensuring a rapid growth of the Group's operating
results in 2016 and beyond. Wind power, the third largest power source after
thermal and water power in China, is now in the process of transition from
being treated as an alternate power to a principal one, and it would become

the major power of energy structure in China in future.

Given that the Group has strong technical advantages in the application of
energy storage system and electric vehicle technology and operates in the
clean energy industry as staunchly encouraged by the supports from state
policies, the development of new technology and exploitation of new market
are focusing on the areas of wind and solar power storage integration as well
as electric vehicles intensively. In particular, photovoltaic power generation
is undoubtedly the fastest growing industry among those of non-fossil fuels.
As at the end of 2015, the total installed capacity of photovoltaic power
generation in China amounted to 43.18 million KW, surpassing Germany
successfully and ranking the top in the world in terms of installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generation. In June 2016, “Notice on Implementation
Proposal relating to Construction of Photovoltaic Power Generation” was
promulgated by the National Energy Administration. This Proposal provides

to continue implementation of “Lead-runner” technological standard on the
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the construction of photovoltaic power lead-run technology base such as
photovoltaic corridor in the Winter Olympic Games. The industry therefore
started to enter into an era of “Lead-runner” with competition in quality
and efficiency. As such, the Group will hinge on tremendous technical
edges obtained in the said two sectors, grasping the opportunity of staunch
assistances and supports from China policies and devoting greater efforts in
market exploitation with the aim of adding momentum in the course of the

rapid growth of the Group's operational resullts.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 2| employees (2015: 19 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 587 employees (2015: 609 employees)
in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee's performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,

discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Finance

In December 2014, the Group proceeded a placing of the existing shares
and subscription for new shares of 400 million shares, with the placing price
of HK$0.75 per share (whereas HK$0.91 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the last trading day of 15 December 2014), obtaining a net fund
of approximately HK$29 | million, which is mainly used for general working
capital and to finance projects on energy storage including the development of
wind and solar power storage integration and that on electric vehicle, thereby
improving the Group's capital structure and enhancing the market value. The
placing shares were placed to no less than six placees who are individual,
institutional or professional investors and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
(i) independent of and not connected with the Company and its connected
persons; and (i) third parties independent of and not acting in concert with
Astrotech Group Ltd. or any person acting in concert with it. As of March
2017, the fund has been used to the extent of HK$225.58 million, comprising
working capital for wind energy business in purchase of materials of wind
turbine of HK$175.00 million, working capital for telecommunication business
of HK$20.00 million, and dividend distribution of HK$30.58 million.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016 were
HK$1,601,885,000 (2015: HK$1,624,876,000), of which HK$252,543,000
(2015: HK$180,583,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31 December
2016 was 75% (2015: 74%).

Financial Position

The capital structure of the Group at 31 December 2016 comprised total
equity of HK$2,210 million (2015: HK$2,249 million) and non-current
borrowings of HK$745 million (2015: HK$494 million) with borrowings
expiring | to 5 years of HK$298 million (2015: HK$453 million) and
borrowings expiring more than 5 years of HK$447 million (2015: HK$41
million). This structure of net asset value of HK$2,210 million (2015: HK$2,249
million)coupling with gearing ratio of 75% (2015: 74%), current ratio 1.24
(2015: 1.13), quick ratio .17 (2015: 0.99) as well as bank and cash balance
HK$242 million (2015: HK$300 million) presented a sound financial position
of the Group as of 3| December 2016 with good liquidity position.

Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company's shareholders in the year 2016
(2015: dividend distribution of HK$30,583,000 in respect of the 2014 final
dividend of HKO.7 cent per ordinary share).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, certain assets of the Group of HK$2,233,000 (2015:
HK$696,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.
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Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: nil).

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 52, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988 and
1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director of
Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan
Industry Corporation in 1999, and President Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since
2002, he has served as Vice President of CALT. In parallel, he has also been a
Director of Aisino Co., Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for November 2000 to April 201 1. Possessing rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration, he was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 49, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy
Director of the President’s Office. In 1999, he, possessing extensive experience
in research and management, was appointed the Executive Director cum
Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited
("CAI"). He has been appointed as Managing Director (later becoming
Executive Director cum General Manager) of the Company since May 1999
and became the Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the Company
on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 54, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 8 August 2010. Astrotech is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CALT. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He has also been a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 48, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical
Industry Management with a Bachelor degree with major in Finance and
Accounting and BeiHang University with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He was qualified as a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1996. Since November 2005, he had
successively been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of the Company's
controlling shareholder, CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control
Engineering Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology. He was appointed as Financial
Controller and Executive Director of the Company on | November 2014. He

is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Shili, aged 43, graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor
degree in Law and obtained a Master degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined CALT in 1995, he has served as Auditor,
Deputy Director with the Second Division in Audit Office, Director of
Consolidated Finance Division, Deputy Chief, Chief of the Finance Department
and Chief Accountant. He was qualified as a Lawyer and as a Certified
Accountant in 1997 and a registered Tax Agent in 2007 in PRC. In parallel, he
has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.

Mr. Liu Xiaowei, aged 52, graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor degree in property management and obtained
an Executive Master degree of Business Administration from Chongging
University. Mr. Liu joined CALT in August 1987 and served successively as
Deputy Director and Director of Support Management Division; Director of
External Support Division under Material Department, Chief Assistant, Deputy
Chief, Chief of Material Department; and General Manager of Logistic Center
of CALT. He currently serves as the Chief of Department of Development
Planning cum the Deputy Commander of Information Construction of CALT.
Mr. Liu was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company on 30
March 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 62, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has over 20 years
of experience in corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity
and debt markets. She held various senior positions in intemational and local
banks and financial institutions. She resigned as the Managing Director, and
ceased as controlling shareholder, of Asia Investment Management Ltd.
(“AIM™), a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") on 27 September 2016 and 25 October 2016 respectively. Ms.
Kan is a controlling shareholder and the Managing Director of Asia Investment
Research Ltd, a licensed corporation under the SFO. Ms. Kan was and is a
licensed investment adviser under the SFO and a registered officer of Lotus
Asset Management Ltd. through 31 March 2015 and of AIM and AIR. Ms.
Kan is and was also an Independent Non-executive Director of each of Regal
Hotels International Holdings Ltd., Cosmopolitan International Holdings Ltd,
Sunway International Holdings Ltd. (“Sunway"), Shimao Property Holdings
Ltd. and Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Ltd., all of
which are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and AVIC
International Investments Ltd., a company listed on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Ltd. She retired from the office of Sunway on 28 February
2013. She was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 |, 23 January
2014 and 23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 52, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of the Hong Kong Office of an international law firm since July
2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood,
Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson,
Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on | September 2014. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 I, 23 January 2014 and
23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each.
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Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 60, graduated from University of Science and
Technology Beijing (formerly Beijing Steel Institute) with a Bachelor degree
in Computing and a Master degree in Engineering and the University of
Cincinnati with a PhD degree in Computer Engineering. Possessing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had been
the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the years 200
to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology Management
Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the years from 2003 to
2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial Technology during the
years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013 to May 2015. He has
been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial Group, offering the
perspective on technology and risk management to the Group since June
2015. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the

Company on |0 November 2015 for a tenure of 3 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 56, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT since 2010, possessing
rich experience in engineering consultancy, market exploitation, project
operation and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of CASC. She was appointed as Non-executive Director
of the Company on 30 March 2012 and retired therefrom by rotation under
the Articles of Association of the Company on 5 June 2015. She served as
Chairman Assistant with the Company from | June 2015.



ESNEREEAEZEAEH

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

$ﬂ%$'ﬂﬁ'%ﬁlﬁﬁ°$¥ﬁi¢

B BEEFHMHESHEETESES
m~1ﬁk5@1ﬁﬂ”ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ?
BETEE RT SRMCEEERE B
1986 F B 2= 5 5L 1 1 (E 1A b RUE BT A 55
BT MERBUAES - MAE RAFEI -
EAREER  KAEHEER HEAERH
BREHBIERE AREEEE RAEZE
FAKEEIE T 2003 FE R AN IRELL
REHRINR  AEASERAERLLTE

NEEE - BEEEH KEERIE
BEREENMARBELEEELER - FR
20073 R 16 BEZTANR BB BE (AT
BliaIz)  M2010F 826 HEZTAAR
RREBARE - ENALERETHEARZ
EE

BREBELE 05 BRI - NI ASH
MBEETERRBEXRAMER - B1980F
ERASRIEREEEFREBETERTIE

8 R  HiERER  AEmEfk
IR 1999 £20034F « & BT & B(&
E)@AAREE I 82003F E210F

FEHELRBERIEARBKEEANER
Blaaie vﬁammisﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁlﬁ
Bh: M2010F8 A26H  BETAARA G4
Bo-BIAAEEETHBARCES - HR
2016F7 81 BEIK -

HMEMEE 5258 AEE - LERBAEE
DR TRERAREE - WK B2 B EATH
RITRITERZFEHER o 191 FRNIERE
ERREARIEEREE - BBTIEM - 8T
&%&ﬂ@%ﬁ,mwiﬁgﬁﬁéﬁlﬁﬁ

NEBBREFRREBHEFRLER 20105
2Hﬁ&$ BI4BASIBTE B BEE - 900KW B 1
MEBIEIE  R2010F8A26H BRI AKX
NARBE - ENAREBETHEBARZE
$o

Mr. Li You, aged 52, senior engineer, graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in Electronic Material and
Component Specialized Technology. He has also studied courses in economics,
banking, finance and business management of engineering management
research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively
served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political
Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as
Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director in which he was
engaged in special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets integrative management work. In 2003,
he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department in
CALT, responsible for CALT's civil assets planning management, corporate
management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having
possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management,
he was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on |6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010. He was also a Director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chen Wei Nong, aged 60, senior engineer, graduated from Zhejiang
University with a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Processes and
Equipment. Since 1980, he successively served in Beijing Jian Hua Electronic
Instrument Factory of CALT as workshop craftsman, designer, Deputy
Director of Technology Division, Deputy Chief of Testing and Control Studio
and Deputy Factory Manager of the Factory. He served as Deputy Chief
Engineer of Yuan Wang Group from 1999 to 2003. From 2003 to 2010, he
successively served as General Manager Project Assistant, and Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. He has served as Chief Engineer
of the Company since June 2008. He was appointed as a Vice President of
the Company on 26 August 2010. He was also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group. He retired therefrom on | July 2016.

Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 52, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing LM Hi-Tech
Development Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of
the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 50, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering.
From July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the
Manager of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing
Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant
of the Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Hua, aged 45, graduated from the Nanjing University of
Technology and Engineering with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering on
welding processing and equipment technology, and graduated from the Harbin
Institute of Technology Management with a Master's degree in management
on management science and engineering. Since he joined CALT in August
1994, he had successively served as Deputy Director of the Secretarial
Division One of the CALT's Academy Office, Director of Make Management
Office under Make Management Department, Director of Technology Safety
and Environmental Protection Division under Quality Technology Department,
Chief Assistant and Deputy Chief of Quality Technology Department. He was
appointed as a Vice President of the Company on | November 2016.

Mr. Yang Qing, aged 53, graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in aircraft whole-unit engineering design, senior
engineer. Since he started service in July 1985, he has served Deputy Director
of Test Centre, and Assistant Vice-President, Vice President with Asia-Pacific
Telecommunication Engineering Co. Ltd., Make Executive-in-charge Assistant,
Chief of Make Office, Vice Executive-in-charge, Deputy Commander of CALT.

He was appointed as a Vice President of the Company on | November 2016.
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
(“the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2016 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the

date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
save the following.

Mr. Fang Shili, an Non-executive Director of the Company, is not appointed
for a specific term, but is subject to retirement and rotation and re-election
at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the
retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in this regard to
ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report comprises the following

Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 30 and 36 of
this Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect

including financial, business or family.

The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of
the year are scheduled in advance and at least |4 days’ notice is given to
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which

all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Four Board Meetings and an AGM were held during the year ended 3|

December 2016. The attendance record of each Director at the said meetings

during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:-

Executive Directors

HE/BIEERE
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Ezeged BRRBFAE
Board Annual

Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 4/4 11
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 3/4 1/
Mr. Li Guang 4/4 1/l
Mr. Xu Jun 414 [/1

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili 3/4 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 4/4 I/
Mr. Gordon Ng 4/4 I/
Mr. Li Dapeng 4/4 0/l

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained

for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term

objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial

statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

intemal controls systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's business. In 2016, Mr. Han
Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang was the CEQ, of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During the
year ended 3| December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Board at
all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.

The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional

development programme with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions

and duties of a director of a listed company in 2016 is recorded in the table

below.

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Shuwang

Mr. Wang Xiaodong
Mr. Li Guang

Mr. Xu Jun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Shili

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng

M
REEHER SRBERED
Reading Attending
regulatory development
updates programmes
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
v/ v/
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised four members and was chaired

by Mr. Gordon Ng, an Independent Non-executive Director, with Mr. Li

Guang, an Executive Director and CEO, Ms. Alice Kan, and Mr. Li Dapeng,

Independent Non-executive Directors as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee updated on 30
March 2012 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main

duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

()

(i)

(i)

(vi)

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;

1o review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct.



FHEESGRNBE20I6FENARILEESR
T—ReZ - FWEESSHNERNEE 20165
A3 BLEFEHRESH ZEHIMT

BTES
FhAE

BYFHITES
RERKE(LE)

a6 TR

)=

Bzt

FRBELE

FHEZEEEREZ2016FNA3NBILEFER
TZIEDZRENZEBERE - Hum

T

BAEBEZNFRERAGHENZR
BHMBER (RERER)

LEPEFHEAEREZE20I5F12A
JIHEFERINTEEARTESZRS
BREBABZFHoBRERBRS -
TR REE205F 1283 BILEEE
BXRHFEMNERTEZ ESZTHNES
o

HEWI6FNANALFERABLREEYN
ME S BETINGRE T ISRRME ©

TRERHEE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

One Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2016. The attendance record of each member at the
Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year ended 31 December 2016

is set out below:-

HERE, BRLERH
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Executive Director

Mr. Li Guang [/
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) [/
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice /1
Mr. Li Dapeng [/

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
31 December 2016 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Remuneration Committee and is summarised below:-

() reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 2015 with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 3|
December 2016 is set out in Note | | to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 and

comprised five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang, the Chairman, with

Mr. Xu Jun, Ms. Alice Kan, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng as members.

The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee on 30 March 2012 which are aligned with the Code Provisions of

the CG Code. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

Two Nomination Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 31

December 2016. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is
set out below:-
HE/ BITEERE
Nomination Number of Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Held
Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 22
Mr. Xu Jun 212
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 22
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2016 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Nomination Committee and is summarised below:

() reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2016
AGM and considered succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the CEO.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
shareholders of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such

meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

During the year, the Nomination Committee nominated Ms. Kan Lai Kuen,
Alice and Mr. Gordon Ng as Independent Non-executive Directors to be re-
appointed for a tenure of 3 years from 23 January 2017. The said nomination

was approved by the Board at the Board Meeting held on |12 December 201 6.

On 30 March 2017, the Nomination Committee nominated Mr. Liu Xiaowei
as Non-executive Director to be appointed for a tenure of 3 years from 30
March 2017. The said nomination was approved by the Board at the Board
Meeting held on the same day.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members and is chaired by Ms. Alice

Kan, with Mr. Gordon Ng, Mr. Fang Shili and Mr. Li Dapeng as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee updated on 30 March 2012
and 20 March 2015 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

()

(vi)

(vii)

to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to
the Board;

to review the contents of the representation letter to the external

auditor prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's

response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and

to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
December 2016. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee Meetings is set out below:

HERE BRERERH
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Shili 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 22
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 22

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 3|
December 2016 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below:-

() reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i) reviewed the reports from the Head of Internal Audit on assessment
of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control system
of the Group covering material controls for financial, operational,

compliance and risk management; and

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions.

Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and is
chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr. Xu

Jun and Mr. Li Dapeng as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee meeting

was convened during the year ended 3| December 201 6.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

a7



48

TRERHEE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SNEE A S E SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

HEWIENANBIEEZSHhEBAS The remunerations of the senior management members as set out on pages
(N34 BEHFREH)ZEWELTH S EE 34 to 36 for the year ended 31 December 2016 were within the following

A bands:

AE
Number of
individuals
T 2% 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 5
1,000,000 7 7L 1,500,000 78 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 2
7

ZEET BN & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

EEAKRER FEREEAEASEZEARE DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
Bz NEZBED - B E2016F 12A3IHLEF at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

EHRESH ML EN T year ended 31 December 2016 was set out as follows:
BEAMRHERE &R Fees relating to services rendered
FET
HK$000
iR Audit services 3,050
i Hi g B AR S Interim review services 400
3,450
$ﬁ'§]?ﬂﬁxﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁ THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF

ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

2016 FEERNAR TR A MRS 85T There were no changes in the Company's Memorandum and Articles of

B o Association during the year 2016.

TEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
65. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concemn basis

in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 62 and 68.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be

avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Group has an
Internal Audit Team reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The Intemal
Audit Team performs regular independent reviews of all material controls,
including risk management, financial, operational and compliance controls of
the Group and evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the
Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is submitted to the members of
the Audit Committee and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The
audit reports are then followed up by the Internal Audit Team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Interal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the

Group's assets and identifying business risks.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control system covering risk management and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance for the year under review and
in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management and intemal
control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with the Code

Provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG Code.

The Company has implemented Policy and Procedures on Inside Information,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and dissemination of

inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
is provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding
voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’

meeting thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition (“the
Written Requisition”), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution”) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concemns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows:

Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd.
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 201 6.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 4|

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 69 to 70.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2016 are

set out on pages 6 to 29.

CHARITABLE DONATION

The Group gave no donation during the year (2015: HK$147,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

are set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2016, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2016 were HK$1,463,373,000(2015: HK$1,463,537,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Shili
Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng
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The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement
and re-election under the Company’s Articles of Association.

Mr. Fang Shili, Mr. Wang Xiaodong (“Mr. Wang") and Mr. Li Guang ("Mr. Li")
by rotation, shall retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with the Article |16 of the Company's Articles of Association
and Mr. Wang and Mr. Li, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr.
Fang Shili will not offer himself for re-election then. In accordance with Article
99 of the Articles of Association of the Company , Mr. Liu Xiaowei, appointed
as non-executive director of the Company on 30 March 2017, shall also retire,
and being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provisions entered into by the Company or
otherwise for the benefit of the Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/

entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of

the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and the

amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any options in

respect of such capital were as follows:

E4)
Capacity

BBESES N e (iE2)
Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note 2)

ARSI ARIER (A 3)
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 3)

BEafAA

Beneficial owner

Note:

RO BE

Number

RERDL
Percentage

of shares of shareholding

(Bt 1)

(Note 1)
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%

I The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of

the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 3| December 2016,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member

of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as stated in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements, which are required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on |5 December 2015 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. (“IM New
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No. |
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia to Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite
Material Co. Ltd. (“IM Composite Material”) as industrial plant,
office, warehouse and associated facilities for manufacture of
turbine blades and other composite materials for a 2-year term
from | January 2016 to 31 December 2017 at an annual rental
and management fee of RMB5,181,413 in total.
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(B)

The property leasing agreement was entered into on normal
commercial terms with the rental being at market prices or prices
no less favourable to IM New Energy than those available from
independent third parties. By this agreement, IM Composite
Material was enabled to occupy and use the leased premises for
its principal activities of manufacture of wind turbine blades of

composite materials to its customers.

Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company’s major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 10% shareholding. The leasing of property to them
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. The total lease amount received by IM
New Energy pursuant thereto for the year 2016 amounted to
RMB5,181,413 in total which was equal to the agreed annual
amount of RMB5,181,413.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected

Transaction

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above Continuing Connected Transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and confirmed that the

Continuing Connected Transaction has been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740,
Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the Coniniuing Connected Transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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(1) Connected Transactions

Loans from Shareholder or Fellow Subsidiary

There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's subsidiary,
Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd. ("ASTF") or from
ASTF (with guarantee from CALT) to Beijing Energine as set out in
note 38(i) (a) (1) and (2) to the consolidated financial statements. Since
CALT and CASC are intermediate major shareholder and ultimate
major shareholder, of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's
subsidiary, the loans were connected transactions yet they were
exempted from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders’
approval by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of commercial
terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security made for the loans
under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions are confirmed that they
have complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 53% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 18% of the Group's turnover.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 30% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately 10% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
REPORT

The 2016 Corporate Social Responsibility Report of the Company will be
issued separately and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and of the

Company in due course.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Deloitte.
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CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group") set out on pages 69 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3|1 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Impairment assessment on intangible assets of technology know-how

We identified impairment of
intangible assets of technology

know-how as a key audit matter

due to significant judgements

and assumptions involved in the
impairment assessment.

Impairment of technology know-
how is assessed by comparing the
recoverable amount and carrying
amount of the technology know-
how at the end of the reporting
period. Significant judgements
and assumptions are required
by management in assessing
the recoverable amount of
technology know-how, which are
determined with reference to
the future cash flows expected
to arise from the relevant cash
generating unit, discount rates
and growth rates in order to
derive the net present value of
the recoverable amount.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 18
to the consolidated financial
statements as at 3| December
2016, the carrying amount
of technology know-how is
HK$185,613,000.

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment on intangible assets of technology

know-how included:

Obtaining an understanding on the Group's
impairment assessment process of intangible
assets;

* Obtaining the discounted cash flow forecast
prepared by management and checking its
mathematical accuracy;

* Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted by management, including
future cash flows expected to arise from the
relevant cash generating units, discount rates
and growth rates;

» Evaluating the key inputs adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast against historical
performance of the Group, management's
strategic plans and expectations for the market
development in respect of the relevant cash
generating unit; and

*  Reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on discount rates and growth
rates to evaluate the potential impact on the

recoverable amount and impairment.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed

the key audit matters

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

We identified impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter
due to significant judgements and
estimates involved in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables.

In determining the allowance for
doubtful debts, the management
considers recent trade relationships,
financial background and creditability
of individual trade debtors, including
historical settlement records such
as default or delay in payments,
subsequent settlement and aging
analysis.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 23
to the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$1,556,852,000.

Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment on trade receivables included:

Obtaining an understanding of how allowance
for doubtful debts is estimated by management;

Understanding the Group's process in the
preparation of aging analysis of trade receivables
and the determination of credit limits, credit
approval for customers and other monitoring
procedures for recovering overdue debts;

Testing the aging analysis of trade receivables,
on a sample basis, to the source documents
including goods delivery notes and sales

invoices;

Evaluating the reasonableness of allowance
for doubtful debts made by management with
reference to recent trade relationships, financial
background and creditability of individual
trade debtors including historical settlement
records such as default or delay in payments,
subsequent settlement and aging analysis of

trade receivables; and

Challenging the management on specific
balances which were significantly past due
but not impaired and reviewing subsequent
settlements made after the end of the
reporting period and/or settlement plans
agreed with trade debtors.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

B & 2016 2015
NOTES FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
= Turnover 5 2,436,821 2,616,696
HEKAR Cost of sales (2,145,395) (2,371,786)
EH Gross profit 291,426 244910
HAslg A Other income 7 32,585 29,320
Hith s R 8 Other gains and losses 8 (3,382) (2,836)
HE R HRA Selling and distribution expenses (117,606) (123091)
THER Administrative expenses (160,532) (139,132)
PR Finance costs 9 (78,039) (84,216)
iy UNCE S Share of results of associates (26,534) (7,086)
RIEEELERE Share of results of joint ventures 153,770 156,985
TR AR Profit before taxation 10 91,688 74,854
A Taxation 12 (12,364) (2,701)
RE A Profit for the year 79,324 72,153
Hip2ERX - Other comprehensive expense;
TEEHIRERA ltem that will not be reclassified
ZEE to profit or loss
—MEENEHESE — exchange differences arising on

ZERER translation to presentation currency (146,704) (133371)

FRATEFAXEHE Total comprehensive expense
for the year (67,380) (61,218)

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

69



70

GaBRalkAMEEREG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

&t 2016 2015
NOTES FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
FRUAT AL EERT Profit (loss) for the year
(B1#8) : attributable to:
ZiN/NCIEZZS DN Owners of the Company 76,024 75,469
IS Non-controlling interests 3,300 (3316)
79,324 72,153
AT ALTEEZEAS Total comprehensive expense
XN attributable to:
ALNEHEEBA Owners of the Company (67,305) (53,677)
ElZe IliTr £ Non-controlling interests (75) (7,541)
(67,380) 61218)
FREAEF - EAR Earnings per share - Basic 14 HKcents 1.74781l  HK cents .73/l

TEMXERER(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2016F 12431 H
At 3] December 2016

i 2016 2015
NOTES FHET T
HK$’000 HK$000

FRBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 15 137,730 140,610
ME - WERRE Property, plant and equipment 16 294,633 329,082
Bk Goodwill |7 2,004 2,004
BVEE Intangible assets 18 225,085 244,382
& Lﬁlﬁﬁfi Deferred tax assets 32 1,637 | 759
AR\ ) 2 HEZS Interests in associates 19 353,265 407,587
RELEhEIER Interests in joint ventures 20 1,100,344 1,189,068
Bl —FEaerER Amount due from a joint venture 25 96,846 100,244
AftHERE Available-for-sale investments 21 4,807 2,745
2,216,351 241748

REBEE Current assets

& Inventories 22 216,520 402,650
%%&E{ﬂﬁgﬂﬁl%’i Trade and other receivables 23 3,120,499 1,668,582
NG| Amounts due from associates 24 498,941 880,737
s —REa %ﬁ%?ﬂ Amount due from a joint venture 25 26,504 28,358
BEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 2,233 696
RITERRIRS Bank balances and cash 26 241,667 300,298
4,106,364 3281321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2016F 12431 H
At 3| December 2016

12

i 2016 2015
NOTES FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
nEAE Current liabilities

5 R EMENT Trade and other payables 27 2,006,126 1,422,312
FEfIBE & AR Amounts due to associates 24 309,637 241,451
ERNEERER Amounts due to joint ventures 25 277 88
I8 AT 46 B Government grants 28 839 [,104
RER Warranty provision 29 136,731 106,258
eI Taxation payable 7,654 2,483
=5 Borrowings 30 856,225 1,130,714
A S AN Obligation under a finance lease 31 130 124
3,317,619 2,904,534
RBEEFHE Net current assets 788,745 376,787
EELAERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities 3,005,096 2794268

FREBAR Non-current liabilities
BT H B Government grants 28 28,939 31,295
X Borrowings 30 745,660 494,162
B HEAE Obligation under a finance lease 31 22 152
ERERIBEARE Deferred tax liabilities 32 20,312 19,731
794,933 545,340
2,210,163 2,248,928

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

K2016%F 12431 H
At 31 December 2016
B sE 2016 2015
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BEXRRE Capital and reserves
R A Share capital 33 436,900 436,900
fF# 1 Reserves 1,688,005 | 746,618
RRAIEE ARG ER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,124,905 2,183,518
FEHEHI R Non-controlling interests 85,258 65410
A Total equity 2,210,163 2,248928

HREBTIZEI9BZERMBRE - HEES
GR2017F3 A30 BHE RIKBETIE - Wik
TEEREREEF

signed on its behalf by:

ERE =k
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 199 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2017 and are
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BZE2016F 12531 HiFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

RATREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
GEEDS Rk
1] B
BE KHEE  BEEE  Popety  EXEE  BREE  BEE Non-
Share  Specil Share revaluation  Exchange Other  Accumulated 28 controllng #g
capitl  reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserves losses Total  interests Total
o o T Tt T T T T
HSO - HEW MDY MY S MY SO HEW I A
1) ()
(ot ) (NoteJ)
RWISEIR1A At | fanuary 2015 436500 175 LR 139 318503 DI (14143%) 27778 s 347
RERRTIER) Proft loss) for the year = = = = = = 146 146 (3316) 7153
AERTEHEL B AR Bctange dfence afsng on rantion
fo presentaton cuency - - - = (B4 - = (1Bl () (13330)
RERRE(FR MALR Tota comprehense (exense) o forthe ear = = = - (84 - B @M ) @
EEARERREM ) Didend recogned and pad rote 1) - ) = = = = - ) - )
] Trase - - - - A - -
ROBENA3IA At 3| December 2015 436,900 LRI N ORI 139 189,357 88308 (1,351,874 2183518 65410 2,48928
TERAR Proft forthe year - - - - - - 16,04 76,04 3300 19314
AERTIgHEL 2B AR Bctange dferences asng on trndon o
presentaton curency - - - - (1439 - - (143 (3375 (146704)
REREA(RRMAEE Tota comprehense (expense) o forthe ear - - - = (1B3) =% (1309) ) (1380
Wﬁﬁ R-THBATBAEER  Deemed dsposal o partl terest i subsidry
BALE without ossof cortrol - - - - - - 8,692 8,692 14,054 1014
FM‘JW&@A Captalcontrbution Fom non-cotroling nterests - - - - - - - - 5869 5869
# Trase - - - - - WMy - - -
RIERANA At 31 December 2016 436,900 LS N ORI 1399 46,008 102,887 (1,281,677)  2,124905 05,258 2,210,163
Bir Note
AEEZFHFERADAIEB#ITRATE The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
BRA B AT E%)\WE”‘?E%%%H&ZKEEZ nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal
EERBERAEERNI97F8A 11 B amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
AT BB Lt R 2 4858 116,025,000 7T and the aggregate amount of HK$1 16,025,000 transferred from other reserves
REBRARBENHMEZE2015F 12831 HIEF pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of
ERE - dividend recognised and paid for the year ended 31 December 2015.
2 HRBEeEERTEARANMBE(HE]H 2. Included in other reserves are reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's

P B AT R R () R S B IR R (i)
LEXBNREESARAEIRRER S
EERE  BCERBET A 5K T AR

BEE -

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years' losses or (i) expand production operations and reserve fund for future
enhancement of safety production environment and improvement of facilities

and is not available for distribution to shareholders.



REEy
BRI AL 7
RATEBRELAE :
FBHA
FERX
A PNIE S
FBIERELRER
B AEHRH
nE  BELERBZNE

ERER BT

BREMEZ A FEEDNE

HENE - BERRE
B8
REFERE

BE RRIARERE R

GeRTRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 91,688 74,854
Adjustments for:

Interest income (5,084) (6,873)
Interest expenses 78,039 84,216
Share of results of associates 26,534 7,086
Share of results of joint ventures (153,770) (156,985)
Amortisation of intangible assets 24,648 6,588

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 29,092 30,085
Government grants recognised (593) (630)

Gain from changes in fair value
of investment properties (6,312) (621)
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 25 101
Allowance for obsolete inventories _ 3,685
Unrealised profit in an associate - 6,602
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GeRETRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BZE2016F 12531 HIFFE

For the year ended 3| December 2016

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
LEASEPALREY Operating cash flows before movements
Beng in working capital 84,267 48,108
FERD Decrease in inventories 167,903 75413
B 5 RAM WKL M Increase in trade and other receivables (1,338,337) (171,134)
FE e & R B FOR A (35 0) Decrease (increase) in amounts
due from associates 29,128 (323,146)
El—REaEtEREEMRD (Increase) decrease in amount due from a joint venture (¥1)) 366
B NEAMEMZEMCRD) Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 791,498 (152,148)
JE B A RIFRIE N Increase in amounts due to associates 87,299 7,137
FEfT & & EFIE AN Increase in amounts due to joint ventures 203 26
RIERHZ M Increase in warranty provision 37,210 38,037
BRRE B S Cash used in operations (140,850) (477,341)
BT Income taxes paid (4,836) (2,625)
RETHIARELFHE Net cash used in operating activities (145,686) (479,966)

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#



GeRTRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REEH Investing activities
Gl L E P ) Dividend received from joint ventures 171,828 173,708
ELAINCIL S ¥ Dividend received from associates 3,090 8296
2 A 8 Interest received 2,069 3,068
HENE - BB RREREN Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 218 699
R L FENE - ENE LA Settlement of consideration payable for
BN RE acquisition of a subsidiary in prior years (55,897) (22611)
EREVERE Payment of intangible assets (19,769) (48,956)
BENE  BELRE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (15,100) (7,530)
AftHEREZRE Investment in available-for-sale
investments (2,236) (1,313)
(FROBBEERRITER (Placement of) release of pledged
bank deposits (1,537) 7,083
BEREM® Purchase of investment properties - (10,383)
RETHEEZHSFE Net cash from investing activities 82,666 102,061
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GeRTRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#Z2016F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RMEEE Financing activities
EAER New borrowings raised 1,058,066 999414
AARELER B LA Net cash inflow in respect of
ZEoEEMEELE deemed disposal of partial interest
EHEFRERA in a subsidiary without loss of control 22,746 —
FEPEHIER T E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests 5,869 =
EEER Repayment of borrowings (986,887) (992,736)
ERHE Interest paid (78,039) (84216)
BERMEMERIE Repayment of obligation under
a finance lease (124) (119)
ERERE Dividend paid - (30,583)
METHHE (TR NRLEE Net cash from (used in)
financing activities 21,631 (108,240)
Re &fﬁéngWHQ\ggﬁ Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (41,389) (486,145)
WEEXEFH T E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (17,242) (76,125)
FONReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 300,298 862,568
FERBRERASEEN Cash and cash equivalents at end
DRITEBRRR SR of the year, representing
bank balances and cash 241,667 300,298

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—BEn

FEMAXEREBREER)ERQ A
(XA APREHESTMK L
BRAR BRORBEEMARIME
RAG(ERZM]) LM RRAIZE
#% 12 R X A7) A Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech]) * Astrotech & 1 H B %4
BRESHMKIZAR  HEART
60.64% 2 1 7 ° Astrotech i Bl B 1 ¥
H B 58 A BT R TR 2 B ([ AR B 1) 2
BHA - FEMARREELQR([HH
BEREEERNSREKRARAZ
RIS F] o AR R A ETBE 97
FEARAFE ([RE])KL

ARAEMPEEI R T EEFME
RERF#RREERN—H -

ARBZNEEEBARE  MxaH
BRRUABTES - EFRAARRE

FAR - RORBZAET - K
REEREREE AMBTARBEN

B

ARRIZEBEBEREER  TBW
BAR BERNARALELECTEE
BHRKIEE4] o

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

GENERAL

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech Group Limited
(“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech is wholly-owned
by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), a state-
owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation
("CASC") is the ultimate holding company of the Company via the
immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and CALT are companies
established in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”) while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are

located.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its major subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

are set out in note 41,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

2. ERFTREEIEHAIE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

WREEL ( [HEWBERSE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
#H] ) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
AEEBRAEEERERBEEGTM The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
RE([BAGHMASDERZUTE the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
A BREEEETA for the first time in the current year:
AAVBEMEEN WEREEERZ Amendments to HKFRS || Accounting for acquisitions of
FIREITLR) #RZEHE interests in joint operations
BEEFER B2 Amendments to Hong Disclosure inftiative
(I &g HHER) Kong Accounting Standards
F I F(EFTR) ("HKASs") |
BRGTER FERBHEES Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods
FI6RRES HEZ R and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation
Rl
F 3858 (IB7] )
BEMBHRSER BTEMBERS Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
SCHES) R0 FE 2012 - 2014 cycle
2014 EH
2 FREHE
BRGTER RE EENEY Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
E 6K and HKAS 41
BR G ER
F41 5% (BATK)
BREMBRS RERE Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying
£RIFE 105 - [ERiE HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception

BRI BRE AR 2 fIoMER
EBE 12 R

ARG ER

EPELACCHEN)
BRI E SN RAEERA EXE Except as described below, the application of the above amendments to
B BREERNETHAERBAFE HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
FBAEFEZHBRARMAR,HZ financial performance and position for the current and prior years and/
EREMBREMAII 2 RELBEEKR or the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
TE o

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FER#NE] R E BT BB
BEEL ( [FEMHBRE
EA]) @

EREHRAE IR (BTF) BE
&t

AEERNAFEERERBE LG ER
FIRRETE I ZETA - BEGH

BAE I R2ETES  MRBEEEZ
BRYAEE  AIEBBEAREENK

SRR EREABEKE  YRHES
BMAMRDINEMERZIESIAHHR
B ZSETERHETAER
HHRELER ZABRRKTNIRNS
ERPBRRIALERBERS &
MRS B 2 BN KA BRI

P8 EREZERHEBEIME -

BEAh - ZEFEETER - EREGAHER
AkeetEFRARREARZEME
ARAEEREAREEEESIHAED
BREBEEMEBTEREELD BHU
TEMER: (EEMIreENs2HE
B k(i) EBBERFTEETEHREER
ENHEEER -

BARRBERE2RE - ZFETREN
ARG B PN BB F -

AKBECEPRAZFER  EmLA
HERETENRF  BURKAEE
ERTREEERRETRAKE LM
BERARBER R &SRB H o

2,

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS | “Disclosure
initiative” for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS | clarify that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure
required by an HKFRS if the information resutting from that disclosure
is not material, and give guidance on the bases of aggregating and
disaggregating information for disclosure purposes. However, the
amendments reiterate that an entity should consider providing additional
disclosure when compliance with the specific requirements in HKFRS
is insufficient to enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of particular transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s

financial position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method should be presented separately from those
arising from the Group, and should be separated into the share of
items that, in accordance with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments

provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively, and hence
certain information was reordered to give prominence to the areas of
certain in formation was reordered to give prominence to the areas of
the Group's activities that management considers to be most financial

performance and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

2. FERAHIREETEEME 2
HREEL ( [EEMBRE
EH]) @

AEE Y BIRAEA AT EB/ME R
AT RBEMBREENNE

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

82

I
BB BHmE SRTA! HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'
ZERIZE 9 5%
N BEPERKA HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
ZERIIZ5 15 5% RABRHERT! and the related amendement'
N HE? HKFRS 16 Leases?
R 1655
EBYBSRE Wt X M RIER 5 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-
ERIZE25% ZABEKEE based payment transactions'
CHES!
ERUBRE ERABBIMGRE Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
R 457 LERHE R &R Instruments with HKFRS 4
(1BET7A) THEFHBH Insurance Contracts'
RS AERIZE 4557
REEER
BBIERE REHEHM A Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
ZERIZE 105 & BEME B and HKAS 28 between an investor and
BE G ER BENEILIE® its associate or joint venture’
£28%:
CHES!

TEMXERER(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FER#NE] R E BT BB
BEEL ( [FEMHBRE
EA]) @

B gL BEsE
ET5
C-HES!
BAGAER MAZIRERER
F 2% EERIEEE
(1BFTA)

BRPGMERER BEMBHEER

(BRI A) 2014 5FE 20164
R S U
' R2018F | B I Bz MMz FEE
B e

2 R2019F | B I Bz gMmzFEE
B o

2 R R HR 2 KRGz FEEM

4 R2017F 1 B I Bz gMAmzFEE
B o

8 P2017%F 1 A1 H%20I18%F | A1 R0
BA)R 2 ERR FEBRRAER -

FEMBRERAFES [£MTR]

BEENBHREENFIRIATERE
BEE - SRAR  —REPEFAN
PREEFREREREENRER

o

N

i3

BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS |2

Amendments to HKFRSs

determined.

5

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of deferred tax assets for

unrealised losses?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017 or |

January 2018, as appropriate.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

2. FERFTREETEHBIE
HREEL ( [EEMBRE
EH]) @

EREMBHRERAESE [&MTIA]

(%)
ERMBREEANFIRZEERTSH
M

o MABEBEAMBREEAFEIRE
ERzCERAERMEERRDAR
BEMAIDFETE - ABM
B WEREKEIA DR RAOES
BAKBASOREREREER
REAMENHOEFRE - —KR
kBT HEEE B ABHEKAG
g - NEERRERAORSR
HEERMEECEBEARELES
BEEANKISREERBEL
MRS R RARE R RN BMK
WEBTE  —RUAERIFETA
Htp2ABAN LA E - FiBHE
tEHRE LERRE RN EE
SHHREERNLATEE -
I BREBEHBREERF9
5 BEAFHTAIRERE - &
BEREMEZERAZINESERE
(WIHFIER 5 ERM A FEE
g ERSMA—RIFARR -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

0 All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend

income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EREMBHEREAESE [&MTIA]
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FEEBEEEAZRERRERER
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BARE -AKEZAHBECLRE(R
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BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

0 In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement”. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses

are recognised.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets. The
Group's available-for-sale investments, including those currently stated at
cost less impairment, will either be measured as fair value through profit
or loss or be designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income (subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the
expected credit loss model may result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets

measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

2.

FER#E] R BB T BB
HREEL ( [EEMBRE
EH]) @

ERMBRERAE IS [REEFE
iz |

ERMNE BB RELERNE 15K
E-2ERAHBEBARNSEFANE
ERREEAR - BAMBTRELERF IS
WEBBBRRBEHNEE SR
FI85E[ ] BB G ERE IR
[READ IRAREREN KR ES| -

BRMBHEERE ISHEAOZLRR
REBMERARLATEFERAREY
HRBGE SRR EERRZERRE
MR RBRENARBARESNAE-
AEmE - KR A\RLERA KGNS

B

F—F BHARPHAH

F_8 BRAKNTNENERE

F=F EERHE

FOY: BRHEIEEANFHED
Bff

FLY  RNERTREHEERER
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 5 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS || “Construction

Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step I Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS |5, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS |5 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 5.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent

considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
I5 in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported as the
timing of revenue recognition may be affected/and the amounts of
revenue recognised are subject to variable consideration constraints,
and more disclosures relating to revenue is required. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review. In addition, the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

87



88

n\/-_]_\

B MR RMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE2016F 12531 HiFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

2.

FER#E] R BB T BB
HREEL ( [EEMBRE
EH]) @

FEMBRERAR 65 [HE

BRVBHRELERE e RRBAEBEA
FABANEEREREFEESIA—
BEAERA - BEMBHREERE 65
AERERBRBT LG ENE 175 A
EIRAERRE -

%%W%ﬁiﬁmﬁm%mﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TREPEHXESHELRSE A
%oﬁh%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁgﬂ'ﬁ
%&@QEEW%QE%EA@%EE
B WhABAERAEHERR
EREEEREERRENEARK

EREEEMNSEAAE - WHEEKN
RAES THISMERBRIN BRI E

FREBEFTE  YREEaRERE
FATEMELAE - HERENREE
HHRGEE AN 2RENSHE - B
% HEABRRHFEE)NELEE
MRAREEETOFEMARE - 3B
ERENEME  AKEREKERMS
REELHRZEIERRENEZHE
Btz ARANEENREINRERE
Reng mMAMEEROMRAUZ
REBHERE  -REFEPBREE
Bl 165 - AAEERGBMEENTHK
AEATERMNEMD EBUBER
LREET -

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,

except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented

as financing cash flows.
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For the year ended 3| December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 7, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS |6 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were

owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$ 12,139,000 as disclosed in note 34. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors complete
a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the following
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)

other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The application
of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial position for

liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on application.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules™) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties which are
measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

J Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
0 has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement

with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution of
the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a joint venture.
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BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes" and HKAS 19

“Employee benefits” respectively;

J liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the

acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of

cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified

impairment loss. Investments in subsidiaries are set out in note 41.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate's and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resultting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the

equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or

joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and titles have passed.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease terms, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease

terms and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and

development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

0 the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
J the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

J the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on

the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduce
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss than would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates and
joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses

in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease

at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire

lease is generally classified as a finance lease.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives

of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are

set out below.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due
from associates, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of asset revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss of financial assets

below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the

impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of asset revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment |oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial hiabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured

at their fair values are subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”; and

(i) the amount intially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values

of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as
a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (Where the effect of the time value of the money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

(@) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group's investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group's investment property located in Shenzhen of
the PRC is depreciable, it is not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation arising
from this investment property, the management determined that
the presumption that this investment property measured using

the fair value model is recovered through sale is not rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

For the Group's investment property located in Tieling of the
PRC, the management concluded that it is depreciable and
is being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation arising
from this investment property, the management determined that
the presumption that this investment property measured using

the fair value model is recovered through sale is rebutted.

The potential deferred tax impact to the Group is recognised at
the end of the reporting period as shown in note 32.

(b) Significant influence over Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Co,, Ltd.

Note 41 describes that Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co,, Ltd. ("Jilin
Longyuan”) is an associate of the Group although the Group
only owns 15.35% ownership interest in Jilin Longyuan. The
Group has significant influence over Jilin Longyuan by virtue of the
contractual right to appoint two out of the nine directors to the

board of directors of that company.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,

are discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(2)

(b)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets of
technology know-how

Determining whether intangible assets of technology know-
how are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount to which technology know-how has been allocated. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the future
cash flows expected to arise from the relevant cash generating
unit, discount rates and growth rates in order to derive the net
present value of the recoverable amount. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, there will be a decrease
of recoverable amount and an impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of technology know-
how is HK$ 185,613,000 (2015: HK$208,868,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation is disclosed in note 8.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. Allowance
is applied to trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. In
determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration of recent trade relationships,
financial background and creditability of individual trade debtors,
including historical settlement records such as default or delay
in payments, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis of trade
receivables. Where the expectation of the recoverability of
trade receivables is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
allowance for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is HK$1,556,852,000 (2015: HK$690,745,000),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$65,247,000 (2015:
HK$66,164,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the

valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In

determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method

of valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions

and

assumptions made on the investment properties, including

comparable market rents and transactions with adjustments to

reflect different locations or conditions.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company

have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the

assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current

market conditions and current development of the investment

properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in changes

in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and

the

corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss

reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 3|

December 2016, the carrying amount of investment properties is
HK$137,730,000 (2015: HK$140,610,000).

5. TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

HERNEERBER Sales of wind energy related products 1,785,678 1,893,045

HEREMERER Sales of energy storage and related products 541,335 555,550

EminE Sales of goods 84,819 144,546
HERBRSELZEN Sales of electricity from operation

of wind power field 24,989 23,555

2,436,821 2,616,696
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the year
under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

Wind Energy Related Products — Manufacture and sales of wind

energy related products

Operation of Wind Farm — Sales of electricity from operation

of wind power field

Rare-earth Permanent — Manufacture and distribution
Magnet Motor of elevator motors

(“REPM") Products

Telecommunication Business ~ — Development and distribution of
communication products,
information technology systems,
broadband systems,

equipment and accessories

Energy Storage and — Manufacture and sales of

Related Products energy renewal products by
combining wind energy,
solar energy and

energy storage

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by
operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BIEE
HBER HERERER
Wind B5EE Energy EMER
Energy  Operation HikHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM  andRelated communication B4
Products Farm Products Products Business  Consolidated

TET TET TET TET TET TET
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

xR TURNOVER
e Extemnal sales 1,785,678 24,989 21,610 541,335 63,209 2,436,821
4 RESULT
NEEE Segment result 81,603 1,846 (2,443) 21,570 (3,680) 104,896
AEARATER Unallocated corporate expenses (105,509)
AESRARMA Unallocated other income 12,107
BBRA Finance costs (78,039)
Elh-HaEts2E Share of results of a joint venture

-AEAEHA - unlocated portion 151,921
KEMEZDTEEHRE  Gain from changes in fair value of

investment properties 6,312

Wt AT A Profit before taxation 91,688
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B%E
HlER AR EER
Wind B5ge Energy EEES
Energy Opeaton M TABER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication )
Products Fam Products Products Business Consolidated
AL AL AL AL AL AL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EE S TURNOVER
M HE Extemnal sales 1,893,045 13555 34288 595,550 110258 261669
S RESULT
NEEE Segment result 57,179 (1465) 1,988 34648 (13026) 719324
AEARATER Unallocated corporate expenses (98766)
AERRARMA Unallocated other income 16532
BBRA Finance costs (84216)
Eh-HaErsxE Share of results of ajoint venture
-RESRHH - unallocated portion 161,359
KEMEZNTEEHRE  Gan from changes in fair value of
investment properties 62!
Yyl Proft before taxation 74854

DEEEES D ERNORBAEH -
TEEMBERE RENEZATFE
PR KEDRZEEEELEE
B URREIREMBARARE
B WmEETHRNARESH - &
1 B % D 7] 55 1826,534,000% 78(2015
% 1 7,086,00087C) RIE(L & &R FER
1,849,000 L (2015F : BEEFTEE
PEEEBA37400B L) D EERE D
Bl IR ERDE RS BEMGHET
5 MAEERTESZRNFE -

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

Segment results represent the profit before taxation eamed by each
segment, excluding finance costs, gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties, share of results of a joint venture which cannot
be allocated, unallocated other income and corporate expenses such
as central administration costs and directors’ salaries. Share of loss of
associates HK$26,534,000 (2015: HK$7,086,000) and share of profit
of a joint venture of HK$1,849,000 (2015: share of losses of certain
joint ventures of HK$4,374,000) are allocated to reportable segments.
This is the measure reported to the Group's Executive Directors
for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segment.

At 31 December 2016

BIEE
REER REREBER
Wind BREE Energy EAER
Energy Operation Mt XHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM and Related communication &4
Products Farm Products Products Business  Consolidated

FET TET FET FET FET FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

(3 ASSETS
HEEE Segment assets 3,909,872 414243 44751 372,640 37,820 4,779,326
R-FeEt s ER Interest in a joint venture

-REAEHA - unalocated portion 1,064,506
AEANRLREE Unallocated corporate assets 478,883
FRAEERE Consolidated total assets 6,322,715
8 LIABILITIES
HEAE Segment liabiities 1,415,388 20,7128 16,123 20,473 17,354 2,490,066
AMEARAAEE Unallocated corporate liabiltes 1,622,486
GRBEEE Consolidated total iabilties 4,112,552
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
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Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2015

EWEES
HBER B RiAEER
Wind Bi5EE Energy BRI
Energy Operation WL XHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication A
Products Fam Products Products Business Consolidated
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
iE ASSETS
HREE Segment assets 3200084 504,786 36408 222,130 45,180 4028588
N-BagtsriEs Interest in a joint venture
-REARHH - unallocated portion 1,152,692
AEORAREE Unallocated corporate assets 517522
FREESE Consolidated total assets 5698802
8% LIABILITIES
HHREE Segment liabilties 1710719 4,188 30226 19,645 [7516 1820294
AEARRAEE Unallocated corporate liabities 1,629,580
GREREE Consolidated total liabilties 3449874

REZNBBEIERIERIEER - For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o RBRIAUSEMREELE EE - .
REWME  AHBEREREM
SREE(ZEBERITESKRA
RN MBEEHSRELES
BomBRNFI7THAZARS

RELEDRE K

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain
interest in a joint venture which cannot be allocated, investment
properties, available-for-sale investments and other financial assets
that comprise of mainly bank balances and cash. Goodwill is

allocated to operating segments as described in note |7; and

o BAUSRTETFEERELEE 0 all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
BEN FFARBHREEL S borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax liabilities.
8 o
AR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 31 December 2016

EhES
BEER
Wind
Energy
Related
Products
7AL
HK$ 000

12,849
12,304

5
70,009

(28,035)

RERRBER
B7EE Energy ERER
Operation ~ H1XHER Storage Tele:
of Wind REPM  andRelated communication
Farm Products Products Business
FAT FAT 7EL FAT

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000

0 1] 1,180 174
1293 14 118 1,466
- - - 0
203,256 - - -
383 - - -
1,501 - - -
1,849 - - -

AR
Unallocated
FAT

HKS 000

B
8

1,064,506

151,921

&
Consolidated
FAT
HKS'000

15,100
1N
%
33265
1100344
(24534)
153,770
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

6. NEEH #

HihnEEH (&)
R2015F 12831 H

HEABRAAABEER  Amounts induded inthe measure of segment
TALEE: proft or loss o segment aseets:

RENE RRRRE Additions of property,plant and equipment

% BERRATE Deprection of propery,plnt and equpmert

RERERE Alowance for obsolte inventoris

e - BERSEZER  Losson dipose ofproperty,plant and equpment
HBREAT R Iferests n assocites

ReEbkziEs Iterests njint ventures

ElBENA5E Shre of loss of assoctes
EEAECE(BRIEH  Share of o) profit ofoit ventures

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

At 31 December 2015

EyEE
RER B RARER
Wind BiAgs Energy ERE
Frery Opertin ~ BLARER Storege Tele-
Related of Wind REPM adReated  communicaton AR 8
Products Famn Products Products Business Unallocated Consoldated

7T 7 7T 7T 7T T 7
HS SO0 HS0 S SO0 HS S0

516 i 152 — il B 7530
1505 1305 bl — i m 08
= = = = 345 = 35
10 - - - - ]
103382 5 - - - - 417
— 3136 — — N 31 NN 17
(609) (157 — — — — (108
(156) 49) — — — 181359 156985

TEMXERER(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

6. DHEHBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HhEEE Geographical information
AEB FBURBERTEEMME - The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of
the PRC.
() AEEREIRTLZHWEFHER () The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed
e below:
2016 2015
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
A B E b [ Other regions of the PRC 2,390,801 2,599,273
N Hong Kong 858 1317
ESE United States of America 1,778 10,225
Hit Others 37,384 5,88
2,436,821 2,616,696
(i) REEMBUENBNASEIER (i) Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographical
HEERBNERFBRT - location of the assets are detailed below:
FREBEEREE

Carrying amount

of non-current assets

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
B i i = Other regions of the PRC 2,209,508 2,410,860
N0 Hong Kong 399 2117
2,209,907 2412977

st : EmBEERBEAIHE &R Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments and

BREREHBEE - deferred tax assets.
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BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

6. DHEEE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
FREXEEFEH Information about major customers
REERFEERMBEAECEAHER Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
0% BB FRERMT - 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
EPA Customer Al 444,548 AN FAN/AY
BFB? Customer B? 361,165 EAN/A
BFCS Customer C'* TEANIAY 667,312
EFD' Customer D' TEANIA 449918
BFE Customer E' TEANIAY 434013
: [ 1) 3 BB E fm s : Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
2 Erae T HRE Rk 2 Revenue from Energy Storage and Related Products
: AEEBE R A NS g Revenue from the Group's associates
¢ 1B B8 Ui 2 7 5 (B i 2 48 BE A B 9IS i The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
EFEB 10% revenue of the Group
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BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

Hilg A\ 7. OTHER INCOME
2016 2015
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
HMPWAFEBIE : Other income mainly comprises:
BB (K1) Government grants (note) 9,021 4,054
REMFREHWA Rental income from investment properties,
(BB ERS) net of negligible outgoings 6,464 8,946
FEHA Interest income
—RITHE R - bank balances 2,069 3,068
— T -HaERERIBK - advance to a joint venture 3,015 3,805
i £ #593,0007% 7L(2015F : 630,0007%8 Note: An amount of HK$593,000 (2015: HK$630,000) represents
TC)ERREBRE HARBENBEEY subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities
¥ BERRBZFEMKTALE for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and
2R B (FizE28) - #4 %8 8,428000% 7T equipment (note 28). The remaining amount of HK$8,428,000 (2015:
(20154 : 3,424,000 7T ) 15 Bl BT HK$3,424,000) represents operating subsidies granted to the Group by
/W B B B TS T L A G R B 0 the PRC government/authorities for telecommunication business and
FTREBRZLERHY  RMETE other technology development, and subsidies received from the PRC tax
BISHE c BREET(BER R authorities on Value Added Tax (“VAT") refund.
D LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

8. Hithres RE5R

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2016 2015
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REMFRTHEZ BN S Gain from changes in fair value
of investment properties 6,312 621
ERRELERFE Net exchange loss recognised (9,669) (3.356)
HENE  BELRXHFLER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (25) (101)
(3,382) (2.836)
9. HAERA 9. FINANCE COSTS
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Mg Interest on:
—RITREME R — bank and other loans 78,030 84201
-MEHE — finance lease 9 15
78,039 84,216

TEMXERER(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

10. BRHiR0EEF

e SRR

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREADE N2 MR THIRIA - Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
EZfe Directors emoluments 5,688 6,722
Hith & TR Other staff costs 74,655 72,544
Hi B TRKEFEEIHR Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 11,733 10,102
92,076 89,368
ZEEE & Auditor's remuneration 3,050 3,050
B AR Amortisation of intangible assets 24,648 6,588
RBRFAXZFERAR Cost of inventories recognised as
(BERERE an expense (including allowance for
BERT (20155 : 3,685000/87C))  obsolete inventories of nil (2015:
HK$3,685,000)) 2,118,936 2,347,181
ME - BERREBZTE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 29,092 30,085
R RETREHES M Minimum lease payments under operating
ZRERE leases in respect of land and buildings 13,866 11510
HEFx Research and development expenses 5,448 12,992
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BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

1. 5 B RESENS I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AEEEFRBHRTHREER LT Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
AR BB D AMGHIRENT - pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

(a) EEREH (a) Directors and chief executive
BRE IBX i FFE 2016 FAE
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang  Xiaodong Guang Jun 2016

TEx TER TEx TER FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

HiTES Executive directors
we Fees - - - — —
Hibbie : Other emoluments:
B R Salaries, allowances and
REMIET other benefits 1,582 1,424 1,187 949 5,142
ERURRTEA Performance related bonuses
(W3 1) (Note ) - - - - -
RIREM(MHEE2)  Retirement benefits (Note 2) - 18 - — 18
g Sub-total 1,582 1,442 1,187 949 5,160
TR TEEME T EEBRER The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
RNATFRANEBEIBEISFIZME for their services in connection with the management of the
IRF% o affairs of the Company and the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. B2 - BHEREEME =

(@)

EER4A® (©)

o R REMBEN

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Htth
Fang
Shili
FET
HK$’000

Non-executive director
Fees —_
Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits —_

gt

Sub-total —_

LR TESME TR ABNSE
ERARRRAREEEMIRHR
A% o

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were

mainly for his services as director of the Company and the Group.

fEREE
Kan 2016 FAG
=K+  Lai Kuen, RER Total
Li Dapeng* Alice Ng Gordon 2016
FET FHET FHET FHET

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

BIUFHTEE Independent non-executive

directors
we Fees 176 176 176 528
N Sub-total 176 176 176 528

PREIRTEEHE T RER
REERARBEZMREROR
ﬁ% o

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

. B B REENE o 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EBREHK &) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
2016 A5
Total
2016
FET
HK$’000
5 Total 5,688
BT IRR R FFE 2015525
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang Xiaodong Guang Jun 2015

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

BITES Executive directors
ik Fees — — — — —
EftMe : Other emoluments:
¥e 2ZHR Salaries, allowances and
it AE A other benefits 1,857 1,581 1,338 1,009 5785
BRI Performance related bonuses
(K1) (Note 1) [10 99 83 66 358
BINEFI(HEE2)  Retirement benefits (Note 2) — 18 — — 18
et Sub-total 1,967 1,698 | 421 1,075 6,16l
FRHTEEHE T EERREH The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
KRR RAEEE B EEIRMR for their services in connection with the management of the
PR - affairs of the Company and the Group.
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1. B2 - BHEREEME = 1.

(@)

BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EEREH (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
At REZE 2015 F AT
Fang Zhang Total
Shili Jianhua** 2015
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EHTES Non-executive directors
e Fees — —
Hipe - Other emoluments;
e 2R Salaries, allowances and
Hlgs other benefits = — _
INET Sub-total — — —

LAFTESHE T RRHRE
ERARR R AREES TR

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the

MR - Group.
BER
B Kan 2015 F @5
YN & Wang Lai Kuen, RER Total
Li Dapeng* Dechen® Alice  Ng Gordon 2015
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BIFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors

e Fees 27 160 187 187 561
NEt Sub-total 27 160 187 187 561

BRI TEEHE T RER
REER/RNRBAEZRRMER
7& o

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

. EE - BERESEME =2 1.

(a) EFRAR (&)

4Bt Total

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

2015 F 45
Total

2015
FET
HK$000

6,722

BEAHIERNEERNEZ20I16
F12A831H K2015% 12831 H
LHFEEREEAHE -

FRARREZESFER - £X
P E R < e BRBERBEM
RERBEZME

P

() BERHEBREARFHNEZES?
TFRAZRBREEEBRBRET °

@ ETESHRKEN b NS
BT -

* R20I5F 11 B 10 BEZRE
# 2015 11 B 10 BEHE
## 201596 A5 HEHT
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Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2016 and 3|
December 2015.

Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

Notes:

(1) The performance related bonuses are determined by reference
to individual performance and group performance and
recommended by the remuneration committee.

(2)  Retirement benefits of certain directors are borne by CALT.

& Appointed on 10 November 2015
# Resigned with effect from 10 November 2015

##  Resigned with effect from 5 June 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. B2 - BHEREEME =

F:OM)EE WUBEF - =
KAEE - Hea—H(2015%F : —
M)ERSFMALTZBMSIT

BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included four (2015: four)

directors. Amongst the four directors, Li Guang is the chief

executive officer. The emoluments of the remaining one (2015:

one) highest paid individual were as follows:

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
e REMEF Salaries and other benefits 949 [,137
12. $iIE 12. TAXATION

2016 2015
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$000

AFEEHAHBE Tax charge for the year comprises:

FEBRAEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax

RER Current year 10,306 2,619
BEFERETR Underprovision in prior years 156 82
10,462 2,701
EER A H (B EE 32) Deferred tax charge (note 32) 1,902 —
12,364 2,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE2016F 12531 HiFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

12. HIR (@)
A BB X SR B L2 B R

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit before

N taxation is as follows:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
B A5t A A Profit before taxation 91,688 74,854
RABEEERAEHRTE25% Tax charge at PRC Enterprise
FE BT Income Tax rate of 25% 22,922 18714
EEBERAI RS ECERE Share of results of associates
and joint ventures (35,813) (37,475)
BARMBMAZ BB E Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (249) (1,867)
TAMBR 2 HBTE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 3,644 4,572
ARECHER A IR RIS £ 50 Tax effect of deductible temporary
IR E differences not recognised 3,377 2928
ARERBRZMBTE Tax effect of losses not recognised 19,605 15,847
BRLAALHEAZHIEARR Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (1,758) (321)
RE BT A B ARAE S Bl A Tax effect of temporary differences
MR ZE NG & attributable to undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries 480 221
BREFERETR Underprovision in prior years 156 82
AEEHEAX Tax charge for the year 12,364 2,701

ARAEERNMEALEESB KRS
BREZERBUGEH - MU ARFHHRE LT
"/ e

BE(PEARKMNBELEREHRE)

([EEMBTRE) REXEMBRAER
& FEMBARARMEAZRER
25% °

BREHIAZ FBEETRHIFE32 -
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No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no

assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income

Tax (the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the

tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

13. X8 13. DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
2015 FHERRXMEMRE Dividends recognised and paid in 2015:
B 2014 FRERE — 2014 final, paid - HKO.7 cents per share
R 0.7l - 30,583
AARESHERESZ2016EF %2015 No final dividend in respect of year ended 3| December 2016 and
£12 A3 BIFEEHREES o 2015 has been proposed by the directors of the Company.

14. BIREH -EX 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC
AATEEAEEEREARANERT The calculation of the basic eamings per share attributable to owners of
R = the Company is based on the following data.

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RIESt EBRERBR 2 B Earnings for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 76,024 75,469
ROBE
Number of shares
2016 2015
BIEStEBRERERN 2 Weighted average number of shares for
ETFEROEE the purposes of basic earnings per share  4,368,995,668 4,368,995,668
RRMERNSBEESETEEER No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no
LI E 25 G REE AT potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#Z2016F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

15. REME

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
DVE FAIR VALUE

REA] At beginning of the year 140,610 148,694
R REES Exchange realignment (9,192) (8,705)

ERBRHER N TEEM Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 6,312 621
RER At end of the year 137,730 140,610

ARERBRELHERAUEREE X
RIFERRERNIMAENIESHR
DYERAFGE D RREVEILIN
REMEANR - REMEUNFHE

AREEPR2016FER20I5F 12431 B2H
EMEATEENBAEE T EBELE
VA B REEGEMETIMTERA
ARER B EET 2 HMEmS T  REY
EZHEDNK2EMSGURHEERE &
(ER)REME BT RMAE R LEE
B -

RETHBEREDENLFER AR
AMBRERETEFEEAFENE
FREE R 2 RGBT R ABIR -

AEEZEBYAEREXGEMET
fhE - MHRERBIGEMZIA
e~ EIE%E‘%@@@*”WE@Mﬁ&
BARE MBRESYERALD
EEREEMEER ﬁﬁ%%%%%%A?
ERBHNREA -

KGR AT ER *ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%zﬁ%
BR&ER wAAERA

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
eam rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties. The investment properties are located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The valuation of
the investment properties was arrived by reference to sales evidence
as available in the market, and where appropriate, on the basis of

capitalisation of the income potential of similar properties.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the financial
controller and certain directors of the Company determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group engages independent qualified professional valuers to
perform the valuation. The financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The financial controller
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company semi
annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the

properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.
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BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

15. REYE » 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
TR EBNMNEEZERENED The following table gives information about how the fair values of
HE(LERMER ZMERERBAZK these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
BIRATEAEMBRATESER(E— techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
ZE=R)(BEATEFERARE which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels | to 3) based
ABEEENR)ZEH - on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
0165 0155 TIEEBALE
128318 128318 fEEHER ROYEZBE
HERREALRER G RENR ZOTE ZATE IERANE Relationship of
Investment propertiesheldby ~  Fairvalueasat Fairvalueasat ATESH  Valuation EZ/TTBRRAHE unobservable
the Group in the statement 3| December 31 December  Fairvalue  technique(s) Significant inputs to the
of financial position 2016 2015 hierarchy  and keyinput(s)  unobservable input(s) fair value
TR TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000
NP EERA R 2 ERNE 45703 094 E=R BRARNLE AR E4%00155  4%) . BRLESS 2
Commercial property in Shenzhen, Level 3 Direct Captaliston st RERREUAZEAL - TEBE -
Guangdong Province, PRC Approach NREERATTR

SERABEE Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the

‘ account the capitalisation of capitalisation rate, the
The key inputs are;

rental income potential, nature of ~ lower the fair value,
1) ER{LHE the property, prevailings market
I) Capitalsation rate;  condition, of 4% (2015: 4%)
2) Al

RRSTRRARBUT (05 BREE  ATEY
2) Monthly rent.

£ SYIKAREST) B
REEERRRAEATALE
NELE RER  HEARY
FRRSHENEZR

Monthly rent, based on net The higher the
floor area, using direct market monthly rent, the

@m

comparables and taking into higher the fair value.
account age, location and

individual factors such as size of

property of RMB94/sqm. (2015:

RMB83/sqm.)

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 149



wm 7f ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE2016F 12531 HiFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

15. IREYE &) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
0165 WI5E FIEEBALE
12318 12318 EETER ROYEZBR
HERRRAZREA R 2 RENE ZDVE ZDYE £33 N 4 Relationship of
Investment propertiesheldby ~  Fairvalueasat Fairvalueasat ATESH  Valuation EZ2FTRRRALE unobservable
the Group in the statement 31 December 3| December  Fair value technique(s) Significant inputs to the
of financial position 2016 2015 hierarchy  and keyinput(s)  unobservable input(s) fair value
TiEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERPEREREST L TERAAE 92007 Blle F=h BRAA(E B At B555%(015F : BALLRER A
Industrial complex in Tieling, Level 3 Direct Capitalisation 5-55%) - 3t REEHEMA TEHE
Liaoning Province, PRC Approach LENE  MEMERRITR
SBEANES Capitalisation ratle, tlakin.g into Th‘e ‘hi.gher the
The ey npus e accou‘nt the capnz.ahsanon of cap\tahsanon‘ rate, the
rental income potential, nature of ~ lower the fair value,
(I) EAfLLL % the property, prevaling market
(I) Caprtalisation rate;  condition, of 5 - 5.5% (2015:
@ RA#- 5-55%)
(2) Monthly rent.

RBEFARARK L5 AR ATEE
EGYIKARR ) B
NEEAERRAERTELE
NEGE RER - LEARY
FUERREFERRR
Monthly rent, based on net The higher the
floor area, using direct market monthly rent, the

(4

o}

comparables and taking into higher the fair value.
account age, location and

individual factors such as location

and size of property of RMBI2/

sqm. (2015: RMBI2/sqm)

MERNBEBARBLE=R - There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.
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BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

16. V¥ - BRERSE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B
iR #E YE8EE
BELH L#R e RAR FAR
REF Plant, Wind IR  BOERE
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture hE HERIR
land and and  plantand and  and office Motor  Construction ]
buildings ~ machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles in progress Total

TET TiET T TET TiET T TET TiET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

A COST
RWISEIRIR At | January 2015 7574 18613 43392 36,754 21934 2997 6,847 558641
L Echange edignment ey e Qi) w1 wy )
HE Addttions = 74 957 3106 [,563 73 357 7530
te Diposds - ) ®) &) (1) () - (1483
RWI5%12A318 At 31 December 2015 16,469 17,637 408,276 31,711 22,594 22,097 6,804 531,589
Ei8E Echange redignment (L130) (L1868 (561) my (1,19 @) (4989)
e Addtions - 308 11,147 1,498 1,082 1,065 - 15,100
i Disposds - (140) ) - (216) (264) - (700)
R0I6F12A318 At 31 December 2016 15,339 16,619 391,714 36,649 22,621 21,699 6373 511,020
TERAE DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
RWISEIAIR At | January 2015 4952 14266 114,52 24003 15294 13,120 = 185,787
ERHE Exchange realignment 43) (913) (8681 (1,508) (571) (626) = (12720)
TR Provided for the year 900 803 20755 3380 2253 1994 = 30085
bR Fimingted on diposis - ) ©) 8) (103 (406) - 63
RWISEA3IA At 31 December 2015 5,429 14,116 126,163 25,844 16,873 14,082 - 202,507
BjifE Bychange realgnment 467) 090) (10164 (1755) (635) (144) - (145)
TEEE Provided for the year 846 869 19,621 3303 2483 1,950 - 29,092
bR Fimingted on diposds - 75) (19) - 216) (147) - 47)
RWI6E1A3IA At 31 December 2016 5,808 13,920 135,601 27,411 18,505 15,141 - 216,387
BEE CARRYING VALUES
R0I6%F12A318 At 31 December 2016 9,531 2,699 256,113 9,037 411 6,558 6373 294,633
KI5 12A318 At 31 December 2015 11,040 3521 8113 1,868 572 8015 6,804 329082

Annual Report 2016 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 151



152

e R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2016% 12731 HILFE
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16. V1% - RERRE &)

L% - BERRERE NERER

IANERIFE :
HELHMEET 3-5% kM s AR -
B & A%

BB - SREREE  9-15%
BAEEREL&E 5-15%

BEARTEA 25%
RARWAERME  10-25%
P! 18 - 25%

20164 12 A 31 B BREFE 47 180,000
AT (2015 5 © 307,000 7T ) BT E A Rl

BHENARKA -

TEMXERER(EE) ERAF ¢ 2016 F#

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant, equipment and machinery
Wind energy plant and equipment
Moulds and tools

Furniture and office equipment

Motor vehicles

3- 5% or over the unexpired lease
terms, whichever is shorter

9-15%

5-15%

25%

10-25%

18 - 25%

The net book value of a motor vehicle as at 31 December 2016 of
approximately HK$ 180,000 (2015: HK$307,000) is held under a finance

lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

17. BE 7. GOODWILL
FET
HK$000
5% COST
M2015%F 1 A1H 2015512318 At | January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
20165 12 A3 H 3| December 2016 15,397
WE IMPAIRMENT
M20155 1 A1 H 201556 1231 A At | January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
N2016%F 12 A31 H 3| December 2016 13,393
REE CARRYING VALUES
M20I5%F 12 A31 H At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016
K2016F 12831 R 2,004

REEANANS  BEEPEERSE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to

BB EARBSELEM([BEES
B ]) -

AEEFERNRTRMEEEREN A
HREFYKEEnSHZESRE]B A
REME . FHERT B 22,004,000 7T
ZRE - MZBEAKEBEERESE 2K
i RRGER DI 2 AR E9.5%(2015
£ 9%)ETE - URMEATISHERE
BEKRSEEEMETERBR TG -
EEEMHEAMZERR ZEMEET
EERETEENRERERANRE
BE o

HEWIFENANBIEFE A&E
EEERTHMEREHECHEELE
iz IR RE -

the individual cash generating unit (“CGU") of the Operation of Wind

Farm segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for the
remaining goodwill of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast
derived from the financial budget covering a period of 5 years, which
was prepared by using the most recent financial results with projections
approved by management at discount rate of 9.5% (2015: 9%) for
the Operation of Wind Farm segment, which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to

exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairment of its CGU containing

goodwill.
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8. MLEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EES 30 R
BA Pl AR
Development  Technology Licence aE
cost know-how right Total
(Hizta) (Hiztb) (Hztc)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
FET FET FET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
A COST
R20I5% 1 A1H At | January 2015 16,098 32,679 13,054 61831
B 5 A% Exchange realignment (941) (1908) (679) (3528)
NE Additions 10,024 37,248 | 684 48956
WERBARREA Acquired on acquisition of
(F¥7E39) a subsidiary (note 39) — 151991 — 151,991
201512431 R At 31 December 2015 25,18 220010 14,059 259,250
B Exchange realignment (1,59) (13.953) (803) (16352)
NE Additions 9,100 10,669 = 19,769
R2016F 12431 A At 31 December 2016 32,685 216,726 13,256 262,667
HiH AMORTISATION
R2015F 1 A1H At | January 2015 = 7,663 1,370 9,033
B 5 % Exchange realignment — (607) (146) (753)
FRZH Charge for the year — 4086 2,502 6,588
R20I15F 12431 R At 3| December 2015 — [1,142 3726 14,868
5 AR Exchange realignment — (1,649) (285) (1,934)
FAXH Charge for the year — 21,620 3,028 24,648
M2016%F 12431 At 3| December 2016 — 35113 6,469 37,582
REE CARRYING VALUES
R2016F 12431 R At 3| December 2016 32,685 185,613 6,787 225,085
201512431 A At 31 December 2015 25,18 208,868 10333 244,382

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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8. BREE »)

B EEREREEN T SRS
i

FIEAA 5%
ELUIPIE 6Z8EF
R E 5%
e :

@ ZeBEIREREIEERIDBEZE
RASHOFEBHEE BN F RSN
BEBRFEKA

b) ZEREARLERNZERHE
mn ] 32 5 T8 R M O BT A PR
R o

@ ZEBEIEAXEBIDBZEHEM
RSB BRAERTE

HAEARTS - RAARESFEE
NEEERER B BRRSEES
fir o

AEEERERBABAFHBHEER
RERBRERERA - MBI BE
BEMRIRNEEREER D BEIEZ
Sl BB S BRI K 1 25% TR S o
ERAGHEEERERI%(TERB
HETSHEHERERE) AR FH
BHRARBERE - FREEMENE

fhEERHHA %ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ&%ﬂm
ﬁémk/w HEtE@ - BEMGED

ERReELBUMBERTULER
BHRM5ERNEMTE REHME
- ERERREMNZSRRNEMSE
By e Sy RAAEREND
WEEH

BHZE206F 128318 "EEEEE
ETHEREEREENBRSEHEMNY
& IBRE -

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following period:

Development cost 5 years
Technology know-how 6 years - 8 years

Licence right 5 years
Notes:

(@  The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode
material for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the “Energy
Storage and Related Products” segment.

(b)  The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-how
for the manufacture of various models of wind turbines for the “Wind
Energy Related Products” segment.

() The amounts represent global positioning system terminal development

licence rights for the "“Telecommunication Business” segment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, technology know-how have
been allocated to the individual CGU of the “Wind Energy Related

Products” segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for technology
know-how based on a value in use calculation. The calculation used
discounted cash flow forecast based on financial budget covering a
period of 5 years, which was prepared by using the most recent financial
results with projections approved by management at discount rate of
12.5% for the “Wind Energy Related Products” segment. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using an estimated
constant growth rate of 3% which does not exceed the average growth
rate for the relevant markets. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of future cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the CGU's historical performance, management's strategic plans
and expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairment of its CGU containing

intangible assets.
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BE2016% 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2016

19. REFEAT 2R

REBRBERFZREFENT :

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follows:

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FEEMEE ZKA Cost of unlisted investments 416,592 416,592
R IEE:S Exchange realignment 3,353 28,051
FEME U B 12 B8 R B A 2 E R ¢ Share of post-acquisition loss and other
(HBREWRE R ARZREF) comprehensive expense, net of dividend
received and unrealised profit (66,680) (37,056)
EREEFE Share of net assets 353,265 407,587

R2016F 128318 ELEWEHEERA

BIEW R A B E £ 2 H2 681,000
7 J0(2015 4 : 681,00058 T ) » 2016
FNRANB AEEMEEARHEE
EmmBmEMABE R MRLEEESE
* & 3 % 5126260007 L2015 4F :
14,182,00087T)

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 31 December
2016 is goodwill of HK$681,000 (2015: HK$681,000) arising on the
acquisition of associates. As at 3|1 December 2016, unrealised profit of
HK$12,626,000 (2015: HK$14,182,000) arising on the sales of goods by
the Group to associates which are not yet sold by the associates at the

end of reporting period.
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19. REFEATIZHER &) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EXBEATZHMBEREE Summarised financial information of material associates
BERASBEEARBENR 2 MBENY Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
ZEIIAT o N TE &R E 2 51 5 associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
ERRITISHRE (BER SRS ER represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
REFMIRZ 88 prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
BEARRAERERZERE MR The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these
RN ° consolidated financial statements.
IHERBIBEERAR(IERSE Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
R ) Longyuan”)

2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
MENEE Current assets 872,382 908,005
FREEE Non-current assets 807,412 940,107
mEaE Current liabilities (574,424) (677,702)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities (671,458) (716,178)
BZE20165 HE20I5F
12A31 81 2 A3 81
FE FE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 145,279 138,171
FERRMNREEBAER Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 21,991 14,627
FRE YRR AR E Dividends received from the
associate during the year 2,962 8,296
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For the year ended 3/ December 2016

19. REFENATIZHER &) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EXBMEATZMBEEAME (&)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)
IHERBIBREERAR(IEE Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
R (&) Longyuan”) (Continued)
L s E R E E NGRS B R R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

HER N N RS 2 REE SR -

consolidated financial statements:

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TEBERCEERE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 433,912 454232
AEBERIHERMAEER 2B DL Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%

AEERNIHFERER CKEAE Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Jiangsu Longyuan 108,478 113,558

EEREX B E AT EREH

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEENEFAEE The Group's share of loss for the year (32,032) (10,743)
AEBRZEME ATER 2 BIREE  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
interests in these associates 244,787 294,029
M2016%F R20I5FI12A318 - A& Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are set out in note 41.

TEMEREZFHBEIINME

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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For the year ended 3| December 2016

20. REBLEZER 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
REFRALOEVITEEHBENT ¢ Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:
2016 2015
FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

REELFEZIFLTREKA - Cost of unlisted investments

R USRS AR S in joint ventures, net of
pre-acquisition dividend 1,624,311 1,624,311
BE . E R Exchange realignment 85,742 167,848
PGB ER - HIRARE Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend 43,191 49,809

EhEEFE Share of net assets 1,753,244 1,841,968

B BEHERZRERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,900) (652,900)
1,100,344 [,189,068

3F F IR B R AN B 3 2007 4 U BE A Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of

AN B A Y 79 £ 703308,000 % 7T HK$703,308,000 (2015: HK$703,308,000) arising on the acquisition of

(20154 : 703,308,000 7T) ° joint ventures arose in 2007.

EXSBAETHBESHEE Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

AUAEEEAAS N E YA Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint

EHIMT o U THEERBE254 venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below

B ZB TR (RIEE S KRS AR represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements

EENERR Y S8 o prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

A BN B R L SR pA S B e A B 3 R The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

EINIE consolidated financial statements.
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20. REELEZER @

EXGERRZMBEAME (&)

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

(Continued)
TR EHEE R EERGERA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
A(ZERED Ltd. (“Delphi’”)
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
MEEE Current assets 1,338,077 1,061,557
FREEE Non-current assets 358,040 394,461
mEaE Current liabilities (1,047,272) (767,305)

NEEERABEBRATER

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

BeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 51,636 10816
RPLRHAR(TEEEIR Current financial liabilities (excluding trade

H A AT R B8 and other payables and provisions) 324,269 427942

BZ2016%F BEWISF

12A31H 12A31H

LHFE HEE

Year ended Year ended

31 December

3| December

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 2,964,608 3,200,148
FRRENREEBARE Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year 346,204 367,739

FABRERRRE Dividends received from Delphi
during the year 160,388 173,708

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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20. REELEZER @

EXGERRZMBEAME (&)

IREHEERRHREERAARA
A(rEmE#)

FRFEREMBEATEIA

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)

The above profit for the year include the following:

2016 2015

FET F&ET

HK$’000 HK$000

e s Depreciation and amortisation 32,579 40961
FEWA Interest income 153 295
FMBRX Interest expense 3,803 8,890
PSR 3 Income tax expenses 58,902 63,524

LM BB B EBREGA R BREF
RN EEEER 2 REEHE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2016 2015

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

ERECEE%E Net assets of Delphi 648,845 688713

AEBERERBMEEER 2B Proportion of the Group's

ownership interest in Delphi 49% 49%

Bl Goodwill 563,669 601,839

RERETATERARZZE Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition 182,903 213,384
AEENEREER REE Carrying amount of the Group's

interest in Delphi 1,064,506 1,152,692
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20. REELEZER @

EEREXZEELRELEH

ARBEDEFAREM (E])

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

2016 2015
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
The Group's share of profit (loss)
for the year 1,849 (4374)

R2016FE KR20I5F 128318 AEH

TEASOEY HEHRIIANE4I o
21. OEHERS

I bRt - RACAE (MR

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are set out in note 41.

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2016 2015

FET FET

HKS$’000 HK$000

Unlisted shares, at cost (note) 4,807 2,745

M ZREAKARERERE - BALQH
EERRLTETRAREIE

Note: The investment is measured at cost less impairment as the directors of

the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured

reliably.

2. Bl 22. INVENTORIES
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
R Raw materials 62,524 197,805
&M Work-in-progress 28,995 42,676
UpK Finished goods 125,001 162,169
216,520 402,650

162 FEMXERER(EE) BRAT ¢ 2016 FH
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23. ESRAMEKR

BOREMERRBIEE S ERRK
| 55685200078 TT(20154F : 6907450007 7T, )
BB R BR B 156524700078 JT(015%F ¢
6616400078 7T ) 016F 2 A3IBE 2 & 5
BUFeEHERE B REBRERT
28 = 7’ JE U & 1R £ 43895000078 7T(2015
F 1 25663300078 TT ) o & R S NI B5F
Q0155 « | B55 ) BRI REESE - Hh
388555000/ JL(20154F ¢ 17819400078 7T ) %
RREHRE—FREE - ENHBEFE
Wikisss - AEBREEE R TR PTE
BAEANEESR - MTEFHEATHSE
ITERFNEEHE—FRLEE - RREH
ARIEER B H (R W hesd B 2EE )7
T B S REUGR IR 2 BRI DTN T -

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$1,556,852,000 (2015: HK$690,745,000) net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$65,247,000 (2015: HK$66,164,000). The
amount of trade receivables at 31 December 2016 included retention
receivables for the sales of wind turbines and energy storage and related
products to third parties of HK$438,950,000 (2015: HK$256,633,000).
The balances will be settled upon the completion of warranty period
of I to 5 years (2015: | to 5 years), of which HK$388,555,000 (2015:
HK$178,194,000) will be settled after one year from the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining balances of trade receivables,
the Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to
its customers for sales of goods. At the discretion of the executive
directors, several major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to one year. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated

the respective revenue recognition dates:

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 674,711 77,481
3IE90H Between 31 - 90 days 102,384 144,796
91 E180H Between 91 - 180 days 5,889 1,208
181 £365H Between 181 - 365 days 173,051 352,034
HiB—F Over | year 600,817 115,226
1,556,852 690,745

AEEBFRENFEHRERERE
185,429,000 7T (2015 £ : 267,726,000
TORMEWIRR  RBREBRERH - M@
AEBW KA EBEELRE B8
ETHENE OGS AEEW AR
WEERFEEMERD o ILFEUH
Z BRI B 180 % 365 H (20154 180
B)A -

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$ 185,429,000 (2015: HK$267,726,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
within 180 to 365 days (2015: 180 days).
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23. B RHEMEBWER =)

ERHERREZE SRR RE D

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

T
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
B Overdue by:
0&E90H Between 0 - 90 days 33,589 1,208
912 180H Between 91 - 180 days 16,589 243,400
i@ 180 H Over 180 days 135,251 23,118
g Total 185,429 267,726
ANEB MR AMBERI65ANER The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables

HIE2ERE RARBERTLRH -
#1365 A K FE WK — MR A E - 1
HTESHRBRATRREESHZETE
ERPBRIN -

overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that receivables
that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for
some major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the

executive directors.

FEERESTHMT Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2016 2015
FE FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FOHEER Balance at beginning of the year 66,164 67,062
[k Exchange realignment 917) (898)
FIRRAEER Balance at end of the year 65,247 66,164

REBBESIEAHEGCEL RRF
PR S B ) R E KX 5 KO [E B R E B
EHRWGR - AKEY HEH % FH BT
BEAERR

REMEMHZLH  ARBZHTE
FHEEHHOENGEERPZERE

ERBERPZEERE -ETEFZ
RELLLZRELELCEET HR -
rEBEERREEREZEELS
88%(2015%F : 61%) B 5 FE UKL Ea HR
ERE o

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 88% (2015:
61%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have the best credit history managed by the Group's credit team.
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B RHEMEKR =)

AREER016F 12831 B2 E M fEMFR
BERPERBTEZIES 126211,0007%8
TC(20154F © 19784300078 7T) ~ AJ YR [l 8
B 1104760007 7T(2015%F : 38,404,000
L) BHRESERUSEE 2 RKER
,383,454,0007%8 7L(2015%4F : 668,607,000/
Jo) ° NEBR20I5F 12 A3 Bz EAfE
WK B IR YA & MRS 12214000
BIL(0165F : ) AREBREKEEEE
IR B4 E 2 IR 15 20,540000 8 7T(2016
Fim)o

HEWIENANBIEEE  A&EE
e EE 2 BRER7E 180 B (20154 :
180 H) AR °

FEWrFEfT B A B

BhEEAFARABEE S ERK
496,188,00075 7C (2015 £ : 825293,00078
7)) BHRNHRAEER - £ERBEH
ERm(EERRANEEHRMER)EF 180
BiEEH - FIgr4#22,753,00075(2015
£ £ 29390008 7T) BEEA - £ 8 RIR
EREE - R20I5F12A3IBNEH
IREIETE & TE A 5RIE 52,505,000 7T + B
2016 FRHHA -

MREZE206FENANBLEFEFELE
HZSEBIEAYEN kR AR
015F 12 A3 BEMEERRFZET
AEEEHRYGKEELIIAR20I6F
12A31 BZ2BZEMGK

ERABEARAZXBEEIEMAR
308,899,000 7C(2015 4 : 240,663,000 7
TT) e ZEREAERF - B KRB 365
B{EEH - Fl&h4# 7380007 (2015
F 17880008 ) REE I - BERIR

i
ZHREE -
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BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2016 are
deposits for purchase of inventories in the PRC of HK$126,211,000
(2015: HK$197,843,000), VAT recoverable of HK$10,476,000
(2015: HK$38,404,000), bills receivable of HK$1,383,454,000 (2015:
HK$668,607,000) in relation to the settlement of trade receivables. The
Group's other receivable at 31 December 2015 also included dividend
receivable from a joint venture of HK$12,214,000 (2016: nil) and bills
receivable of HK$20,540,000 (2016: nil) in relation to the settlement of

dividend receivable from a joint venture.

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 180 days for the year
ended 3| December 2016 (2015: 180 days).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates are trade receivables of
HK$496,188,000 (2015: HK$825,293,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit periods for 180 days for sales of
goods mainly wind energy related products. The remaining balance
of HK$2,753,000 (2015: HK$2,939,000) are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The balance as at 3| December
2015 also included an amount of HK$52,505,000, representing
prepayments for inventories and was fully utilised in 2016.

Certain outstanding trade receivables previously included in the
amounts due from associates as at 3|1 December 2015 are grouped and
presented under trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 as a result
of the loss of significant influence over these entities during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Included in the amounts due to associates are trade payables of
HK$308,899,000 (2015: HK$240,663,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining
balance of HK$738,000 (2015: HK$788,000) are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$96,846,000 (2015: HK$100,244,000), of which loans advanced to
the joint venture amounted to HK$62,604,000 (2015: HK$66,843,000)
that bear fixed interest rate at 4.35% (2015: 4.85%) per annum. The
joint venture has pledged its land and buildings with a carrying amount
of HK$45,110,000 (2015: HK$50,868,000) to the Group to secure the
loan. The remaining amount of HK$34,242,000 (2015: HK$33,401,000)
is non-interest bearing. The joint venture has entered into arrangements
with the Group in connection with the above loans of HK$62,604,000
(2015: HK$66,843,000) and other balance of HK$20,570,000 (2015:
HK$21,963,000) as at 31 December 2016 that these amounts shall be
repaid from the proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings
and certain other assets of that joint venture. The directors of the
Company considered that the amount due from the joint venture will
not be settled within twelve months from the end of the reporting

period, therefore classified as non-current asset.

Current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$26,459,000 (2015: HK$28,251,000), which represents the retention
receivables for the sales of wind turbines to a joint venture that took
place in prior years which will be settled upon the completion of
warranty period in 2017. The remaining balance of HK$45,000 (2015:
HK$107,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

The amounts due to joint ventures of HK$277,000 (2015: HK$88,000)

are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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26. BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.25% (2015: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

are related.
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
46,906 [1,614

B & 47 R 17 77 B 035%(2015%F ¢
035%) Z B EFF EF B o BHEMPRT
17 302,233,000 7C(2015 € = 696,000 7
T EERERETRABREZER - R
WI7EIAEERERBERSRER - L H

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.35% (2015:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$2,233,000 (2015: HK$696,000), have been pledged to secure
certain bank facilities. It will be released in March 2017 upon the
settlement of the related borrowings and are therefore classified as

current assets.
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27.

B R EMEMNR

BEOREMERNRBEEZENR
290,739,000 7% 7£(20154F : 1,218,939,000
B c AREBBRMEFRE0RE
0RKEEH - BHEMNRNME R

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$1,290,739,000 (2015: HK$1,218,939,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following

is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

RREZHBHZRESITNT the reporting period:

2016 2015
FET TR
HK$’000 HK$000
30AA Within 30 days 574,256 353,564
31290H - 90 days 180,869 359,121
912 180H - 180 days 129,831 110,991
181 £365H Between 181 - 365 days 130,226 237,043
iR —F Over | year 275,557 158,220
1,290,739 1,218,939

R2016F12A31 8 NEE 2 H b fE Included in the Group's other payable at 31 December 2016 are

NIRRT IZ ST FRIE |,167,00078
JE(20154F ¢ 124600058 7C) ~ BKEF
FXIA 12,779,000 7T(20154F : 8,953,000
W or )~ FE & 8 K Z31,071,0008
JE(20154F © 13,584,00058 7T )~ FE f
R = M £3848000% JL(2015%F ¢
4,108,000/ 7T ) + FE 1 2 48 526,062,000
B 7T(20154F : 27,471,00078 70 ) ~ W BE
B A Al FEA (B 12,168,000 702015
1 72,673000587T) °

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

accruals for construction work of HK$ 1,167,000 (2015: HK$1,246,000),
receipt in advance from customers of HK$12,779,000 (2015:
HK$8,953,000), accrued transportation cost of HK$31,071,000
(2015: HK$13,584,000), office rental payable of HK$3,848,000
(2015: HK$4,108,000), bills payable of HK$526,062,000 (2015:
HK$27,471,000), consideration payable for acquisition of a subsidiary of
HK$12,168,000 (2015: HK$72,673,000).
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28. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2016, government grants of HK$29,778,000 (2015:
HK$32,399,000) represent subsidies granted by the PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss over
5 to 33" years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and

buildings (included in property, plant and equipment).

2016 2015
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REZMAMA - Analysed for reporting purpose as:
FrnBERE Non-current liabilities 28,939 31,295
nEaE Current liabilities 839 [,104
29,778 32,399
29. 1%1@??&1% 29. WARRANTY PROVISION
(REREREEEREAEBNAIE Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
Az REEEZHTMYRENZE R best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
R EE R EMET2EE - required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of
wind turbines.
(REB B EE) Movement in the warranty provision:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FHZEER Balance at beginning of the year 106,258 74032
B 50 8% Exchange realignment (6,737) (5811)
R IE B A Additional provisions recognised 46,780 59,925
BREE Utilisation of provision (9,570) (21,888)
FIRZ IR Balance at end of the year 136,731 106,258
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30. 8 30. BORROWINGS
2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
RERITER (M) Short-term bank loans (note a) 378,869 533,898
Hi g e R (Mt a) Short-term other loans (note a) 332,025 119,363
REREREEE S (HzEb) Short-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note b) 145,331 477453
BRERERREHH (HzEb) Long-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note b) 726,655 453,579
Hib REIER(MizEc) Long-term other loans (note c) 19,005 40,583
1,601,885 1,624,876
B SRR EENRN—FR Less: Amount due within one year
B2 A under current liabilities (856,225) (1,130,714)
—FREE 7 F0E Amount due after one year 745,660 494,162
AEBEEZIHERMT* The maturity of the Group's borrowings
is as follows™:
—FR Within one year 856,225 1,130,714
—FEMF Between one to two years 279,483 155,172
MEZRE Between two to five years 466,177 338,990
1,601,885 1,624,876
3 RENBEMEERERREREE - & Based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 31 December 2016 represents unsecured bank loans
of HK$378,869,000 or RMB338,902,000 (2015: HK$533,898,000 or
RMB447,289,000).

Loans of HK$145,331,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (2015: HK$393,898,000
or RMB330,000,000) bear fixed-rate interest at 4.79% (2015: ranging
from 4.35% to 4.85%) per annum.

Loan of HK$33,538,000 or RMB30,000,000 (2015: nil) bears floating-rate
interest at PRC Lending Prime Rate plus 0.05% that is 4.35% rate per

annum.

Loans of HK$200,000,000 (2015: HK$140,000,000) bear floating-rate
interest ranging from Hong Kong inter-bank offered rate (“HIBOR") plus
1.65% to 2.3% (2015: HIBOR plus 2.3%) per annum.

The loans are repayable within one year (2015: within one year) and are
used to finance the operations of the Group.

The Group also obtained loans in current year from Aerospace Science
and Technology Finance Co., Ltd. ("ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of
CALT, amounting to HK$332,025,000 or RMB297,000,000 (2015:
HK$119,363,000 or RMB100,000,000). The amounts are unsecured
and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate interest at 4.13% (2015:
4.13%) per annum. Loans of HK$145,331,000 or RMB 130,000,000
(2015: nil) and HK$ 186,694,000 or RMB167,000,000 (2015: nil) and are
repayable in March 2017 and December 2017 respectively. Loans of
HK$ 119,363,000 or RMB 100,000,000 at 31 December 2015 were fully
repaid in 2016.
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through
CASC's subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to
HK$871,986,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2015: HK$931,032,000 or
RMB780,000,000).

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.88%
to 5.0% (2015: 4.88% to 5.0%) per annum. Loans of HK$ 145,331,000
or RMB 130,000,000 (2015: HK$ 155,172,000 or RMB130,000,000),
HK$279,483,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2015: HK$298,407,000 or
RMB250,000,000) and HK$447,172,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2015:
nil) are repayable in July 2017, March 2018 and April 2021 respectively.
Loans of HK$477,453,000 or RMB400,000,000 at 3| December 2015
were fully repaid in 2016.

The amount represents a loan of HK$19,005,000 or RMB 7,000,000
(2015: HK$40,583,000 or RMB34,000,000) advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People’s Bank of China
Benchmark interest rate that is 4.28% (2015: 5.09%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020. An amount of HK$19,005,000 or
RMB 17,000,000 at 31 December 2015 was early repaid during the year.
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OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

The Group has one of its motor vehicles held under finance lease. The
lease terms is 4 years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under
finance lease is fixed at 2.5% per annum. The lease has purchase options

upon expiring of the lease.

EEEE BEHERE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
2016 2015 2016 2015
FET FET FAT THET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
RMEHERMNFA Amounts payable under finance lease
—FR Within one year 133 133 130 124
BBE—FERZHRME  In more than one year but not
more than two years 23 133 22 130
BBMFRTZREF  |nmore than two years but not
more than five years - 23 - 2
156 289 152 276
B RREAEE R Less: Future finance charges 0] (13)  TERANA  TERANA
MEAERE Present value of lease obligation 152 276 152 276
W —FREERZ Less: Amount due for settlement
FRMNRBAMBTIIR)  within one year
(shown under current liabilities) (130) (124)
—FRERRNZFE Amount due for settlement
after one year 22 152

AEEsREREAEALRBAANEE
BERFIERER -

The Group's obligation under the finance lease is secured by the lessor's
charge over the leased asset.
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EEHIE 32. DEFERRED TAXATION
HENGEEHBMRAKRT S - B TRL For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
MEEENBED THHE - LT ARE financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
R R BRI DT - offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REHIBEE Deferred tax assets 1,637 [,759
BEREBEARE Deferred tax liabilities (20,312) (19,731)
(18,675) (17972)
RAREER F—EEEHAENEL The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
HEaGERBE REBEESHHT : and movements thereon during the current and prior years:
B MEAR
REYE RO M F Hity
Revaluation Undistributed (R&E)
of investment profits of Others met
properties  subsidiaries (note) Total
TFET FHET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R20154 1 A1 B At | January 2015 8,575 12,256 (1937) 18,894
R EE:S Exchange adjustments (425) 611 114 (922)
BEKRXH Charge to profit or loss 155 221 64 440
EXffzHBENF  PRC withholding tax paid — (440) — (440)
R20I5F12H31R At 31 December 2015 8,305 11,426 (1,759) 17,972
B 5 R Exchange adjustments (594) (714) 109 (1,199)
BaR&RXM Charge to profit or loss 1,578 480 13 2,071
EXfzHBEENH  PRC withholding tax paid - (169) - (169)
R2016F12H3IR At 31 December 2016 9,289 11,023 (1,637) 18,675
Mz ZZETEARFRYRIGEREE Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences rising on
H v BaRs 25 o government grants and warranty provision.
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$389,237,000 (2015: HK$540,829,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. During the year, tax losses of HK$124,543,000
were expired. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$ 118,175,000 (2015: HK$135,846,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five
years from 2017 to 2021 (2015: from 2016 to 2020).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$ 1,023,000 (2015:
HK$11,426,000) has been provided in respect of temporary differences
attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$51,508,000 (2015: HK$49,133,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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33. |g& 33. SHARE CAPITAL
LSnE 4= &8
Number of Amount
shares FET
HK$000
BREEOC 0BT ik Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
R2ISEIAIA - At | January 2015,
2015F 124318 31 December 2015 and
2016 12431 H 31 December 2016 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
20151 A 1R 20154 At | January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
12431 BR20I6%F 31 December 2016
12A318 4,368,995,668 436,900
34, BEHERIE 34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
AEEEBRHEAAN The Group as lessee
RNPEER - AEERBERATHESE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
HEMENRRLIHHLEFHERS N lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in
T respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2016 2015
FET &7
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 7,110 6,730
E_FEERF(REEEWE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,265 616
hFE& After five years 1,764 —
12,139 7,346
BH—RBEFHRA—FE=F(2015 Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one to three
F-MEE=F) MESREHAT years (2015: two to three years) and rentals are fixed for the lease
# o period.
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 6,578 6,679
F_FEELF(BHEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 24,865 19,892
TFi& After five years 53,176 61,750
84,619 88,321

¥ AZHBARKRIZI7TE The properties held have committed tenants for the next one to

(015%F : | £ 18%F) ° seventeen years (2015: one to eighteen years).

BREFIETE

AKBRBEMBRERERRIERS
AR E([ZATE)) - %8 2E
FE@$E.;§F”5§JE§EEM§§%Eﬁ
HEFEAZE - AEBAZFEELAE
ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁk$5% SR - MR B MEH R

TW\"

AAB 2 HEMNERREES AT BT
ERZERERRKENFEZKE
ARBZ BB QR ARESFME
RE B 2 L AR KR AT I B S
B ARBEKRBMEE ZE—K
ERRIBAE EIERAAFR 23K

BESHRZKANAEE 1,751,000 T
(20154 : 10,120,0007 7T ) BN AR &£ B 7
At HNENZSTE 2 7R -

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$I1,751,000 (2015:
HK$10,120,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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36.

37.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 30 and obligation under a finance
lease disclosed in note 31, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ST EER Categories of financial instruments
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
TREE Financial assets
ERRERR(BERE K Loans and receivables (including cash and
ReEEY) cash equivalents) 3,828,100 2,716,465
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 4,807 2,745
3,832,907 2,719,210
TRAE Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 3,763,650 3217,110

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to
associates, amounts due from/to joint ventures, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on

how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2016 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management considers recent
trade relationships, financial background and creditability of individual
trade debtors including historical settlement records such as default or
delay in payments, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis of trade
receivables in determining the allowance for doubtful debts and ensures
that adequate allowance for doubtful debts are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has concentration
of credit risk as 13% (2015: 29%) and 49% (2015: 82%) of the total
trade receivables due from the Group's largest customer and the five

largest customers respectively.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 79% (2015:
78%) of the total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one joint
venture and 87% (2015: 50%) of total amounts due from associates is
due from one associate. The Group monitors the exposure to credit in
respect of the amounts due from associates and joint ventures through
exercising influence or control over their financial and operating policy

decisions and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts

are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2016 and 2015 (note 26 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2016 and 2015 (note 30 for details).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and

will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank balances for 2016 and 2015 (note 26 for details),
fixed-rate borrowings for 2016 and 2015 (note 30 for details) and
amount due from a joint venture that bear fixed interest rate (note
25 for details). The management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant

interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of People's Bank of China benchmark interest rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been [0 basis
points (2015: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$189,000 (2015: HK$135,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end

of the reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

REEERFIFERGZ Liquidity and interest risk tables
it 327 AER
RRAE ZBRE-£ RenRLE
Weighted HYR-BE  -E=BR  3months it Total FEE
average  REREXH  Lessthan I3 to [-5 undiscounted  Carrying
effective ~ On demand | month months | year years  cashflows amount
interest rate Tén Tin Tin Tin Tén Tin Tén
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N6 i
HittdRE Non-deriative francil ebittes
EARANENT Trade and other payables - - 1,045,525 88212 260,587 307527 1,851,851 1,851,851
f8-%8 Borrowings - fixed rate 40 - - - 040,581 845,369 1,485,950 1,349,342
-8 Bomowings - foatng rate 174 - - - 138,197 03 260,571 152,543
ERBELTR Amounts due to assodates - 309,637 - - - - 309,637 309,637
ERRELER Amounts due to jont ventures - m - - - - m m
BEfgHE Qbligation under a fiance lease 150 - Il n 100 JA] 156 52
309914 1,045,536 88234 1,139,465 1,175,293 3,908,442 3,763,802
9% 005
HtLRER Non-deniatie francal lebies
SAREMER Trade end other payables = = 450958 366829 38517 184391 135069 1350695
fe5-%8 Borrowings - ixed rate 47 = = = 017679 499764 [ 517483 444293
fBE-75 Bomrowings - foatng rate 310 - - - 40000 51752 191752 180583
EREEATR Amounts due to associates - W[ 451 - - - - | 451 241451
et Amourts due to oit ventures = 8 = = = = 8 8
BEREAE Qbligaton under a fiance lease 150 = I /] 100 15 29 16
11539 450%9 366851 150629 736063 3300718 3217386
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 24, 25, 30 and 39, the Group has the
following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(¥

Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group

(1)

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2016 were
three (2015: three) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$871,986,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2015:
HK$931,032,000 or RMB780,000,000) which are
unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging from
4.88% to 5.0% (2015: 4.88% to 5.0%) per annum.
Loans of HK$145,331,000 or RMB130,000,000
(2015: HK$ 155,172,000 or RMB130,000,000),
HK$279,483,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2015:
HK$298,408,000 or RMB250,000,000) and
HK$447,172,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2015: nil)
are repayable in July 2017, March 2018 and April
2021 respectively. Loans of HK$477,453,000 or
RMB400,000,000 at 31 December 2015 were fully
repaid in 2016.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

0

The Group also obtained loans from ASTF, a fellow
subsidiary of CALT, amounting to HK$332,025,000
or RMB297,600,000 (2015: HK$ 119,363,000 or
RMB100,000,000). The amount are unsecured
and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate
interest at 4.13% (2015: 4.13%) per annum and are
repayable in 2017. Loans of HK$119,363,000 or
RMB$100,000,000 at 31 December 2015 were fully
repaid in 2016.

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings at 3|1 December 2016 was
a loan of HK$19,005,000 or RMB17,000,000 (2015:
HK$40,583,000 or RMB34,000,000) advanced
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
The amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate
interest at 4.28% (2015: 5.09%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020. An amount of
HK$20,291,500 or RMB17,000,000 at 31 December
2015 was early repaid during the year ended 3|
December 2016.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

2

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities
are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business with them are concerned. The Group
also has certain sales and purchases transactions
with certain customers and suppliers in which the
directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable
to ascertain the identity of the counterparties and
accordingly whether the transactions are with other

government-related entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings

are with government-related entities.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties

(@)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note

24.

(b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to

note 25.

(c)  During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

Sale of goods to associates
Purchase of goods from associates
Interest expenses on loan

from a shareholder, CALT
Interest expenses on loan from

a fellow subsidiary, ASTF
Interest income from a joint venture
Interest expenses on other loan due

to a non-controlling shareholder

with significant influence over a subsidiary

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
19,044 1,129,190
269,626 433,740
49,734 48,806
5,709 7,494
3,015 3,805
1,390 2,603

(d) M2016F 128318 K&
Br B Rt R BHE M B R E R
& #& 1R 391,276,000 T =X
A K 350,000,000 7£(2015
F 129840800078 T ; A
R # 250,000,000 7T ) LA £ &
AEBERZEEREZE
ﬁ o
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(@

At 31 December 2016, CALT has given corporate
guarantees amounting to HK$391,276,000 or
RMB350,000,000 (2015: HK$298,408,000 or
RMB250,000,000) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

TEERABZEHM (e)  Compensation of key management personnel
FNFEEEABZHH0 The remuneration of key management during the year was
T ¢ as follows:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
5 HiRF) Short-term benefits 6,619 7,841
BEBRAEF Post-employment benefits 18 18
6,637 7,859
TEEE AE 7 The remuneration of key management is determined
FEeRTEAARB LTS by the remuneration committee having regard to the
BEET o performance of individuals and market trends.

39. BB B AT

RWISENA ARARZ2ENRB A
AR B A K #80,884,0007L (1 & R
96,546,000 87 ) B RIENEST TEAR A
A(NER 2B BAR)WELEH
NRERAE ([ 88N 2 100% K
wme FEMHFERPREMERME - &
RS FERBEENE -

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In December 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired 100% equity interest in Shanghai Hanli Machine Tool Co.
Ltd. (LB AI#KRABMRAR]) (“Shanghai Hanli") from Long March
Launch Vehicle Industry Co. Ltd. (RIEAXETTEBRAA]), a wholly
owned subsidiary of CALT, for a cash consideration of RMB80,884,000
(equivalent to HK$96,546,000). Shanghai Hanli is principally engaged
in the research and development of wind turbine in the PRC. This

transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
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For the year ended 3/ December 2016

39. WEEMIB AT (#)

PN B AR AR EEFEMT -

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired are as follows:

=
BRZEH
Amount
recognised
at the date of
acquisition
FET
HK$’000
B EE Intangible assets 151,991
Hoth R Other receivables 5,704
RITREBRRSE Bank balances and cash 1,262
Hi R Other payables (62411)
96,546
EERA(E Consideration transferred 96,546
B B EE R Less: Net assets acquired (96,546)
bhEEEzBHE Goodwill arising on acquisition —
FET
HK$’000
WBEE 2 RERHEFHE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
ReRE Cash consideration (96,546)
M2015% 12 A31 A Amounts included in other payables
SFARMERNRZ &8 as at 31 December 2015 72,673
PR RITRER LR S Bank balances and cash acquired 1,262
WREMBRARZRE K Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ReSEYRLFE respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary (22611)

40. TEHERX S

20154 - REHE A 96,546,000 7T UL B8
— MK B BT FE39) - M20165F 12 8
318+ 12,16800047T(2015F : 72,673,000
BT BFRIBINARZ N - st AR
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40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In 2015, the Group has acquired a subsidiary (note 39) at
HK$96,546,000. The payment of HK$12,168,000 (2015:
HK$72,673,000) is outstanding and is included in other payables as at

31 December 201 6.
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BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

41. TEMEAT - B ASR  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

é%ﬁ%é*ﬁl— SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

M20165F R20I5F 12431 B2 AR Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the
TEMBLAR BERRARAELES Company at 3| December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
B

ERTEERAZ

HfE/ FmER RAgER AL

Nominal value of KARBE KEEEL

issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAEH share capitall held by attributable TEER
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
WEAF
Subsidiaries
Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:
HERARBEERAR 10,000 57T 100 100 - —  NEERRE
China Aerospace Telecommunications HK$10,000 Distnbution of
Limited broadband business
FERXER(BE)ERAR VBT 100 100 - —  DEABRER
China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited HK$2 Distribution of
elevator products

PEERARAA |7 00 0 - — EEAE
New Image Development Limited HKS$I Investment holding
MEEEER AR | BT 100 100 - — REER
Crownpluss International Limited HKS! Investment holding
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

4. FEMBAT - BEATR 41
BELESEH @)

VENTURES (Continued)
ERTEEREZ
HE/ ERExR RrgszEAt
Nominal value of KAARE REBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable IEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
WEARE)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
ERERAE -
Registered and operating in the PRC:
tRERTEERAA S (b)) AER 1182511007 - — 100 100 HEZRRDHEEE
Beijing Energine Industry Co, Ltd. RMBI18251,100 Investment holding
(note (b)) and distribution of
wind turbine generators
THEMAERRARDRA (M @), () AR 70,0000007C - — 3114 5 HERMEABEER
(note (a), (¢)) RMB70,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
elevator products
MAER(RZ)ENEEEBR A (M @) AR 938000007 - - 55 5  E5EE
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi) RMB93,800,000 Operation of wind farm
Wind Power Co, Ltd. (note (2))
AR BRAR (K () 20,00000077C - — 100 100 #AEmE
(note (b)) HK$20,000,000 Rental of properties
RREMABRHERAR AR #80,000,0007C - - 100 100 ZERDHER
BRAR(HEE®b) RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and

Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy
Development Co. Ltd. (note (b))

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#

distnbution of wind

turbine generators
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BIE2016%F 12931 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

41. TEMEAT - B ASR  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
BRLEEE &) SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEEREZ
HE/ EREx RrggzEAL
Nominal value of KAARE KEBEL
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable TEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
WEARE)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
EPBRAEAE  (£)
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)
AREMAERRERERE AR 500000007 - = 95 95 BERHEEK
ARRDA (K () RMB50,000,000 RE#ER
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Manufacture and
Wind Turbine Manufacture distnbution of wind
Co. Ltd. (note (2)) turbine generators
and blades
RREMABRESH AR 80,000,000 - — 5641 Se4l BERASHRKER
BRAR (M Q) RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine distibution of
Composite Matenials Co. Ltd. (note (a)) wind blades
RARBBESTRITCRII) AR 56,000,000 - - 100 100 SERDHERER
BRAR(HFE (b)) RMB56,000,000 Manufacture and
(note (b)) distribution of
telecommunication
products
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For the year ended 3/ December 2016

41. TEMEAT - BZASR  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

B LESHE 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)
BRITEEREZ
HE/ ERExR RrgszEAt
Nominal value of KAARE REBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable IEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
WEARE)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

EPEZMRILE (&)
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)

I RMAERA EE R RARAR (517 - AR 250000007 65 65 - — DHEBER
ERmAERERARRERR) (@) RMB25,000,000 Distribution of wind
(note (a)) turbine products

HEMABREERBREARLA(ME ()  ARHS0,0000007 - — 100 100 HERHERE
(note (b)) RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and

distnbution of wind
turbine generators

HEmARBERMERARERAR(ME () AE20,0000007 - — 100 100 HENE
(note (b)) RMB20,000,000 Rental of properties
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For the year ended 3| December 2016

41. TEMEAT - B ASR  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
BRLEEE &) SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEEREZ
HE/ EREx RrggzEAL
Nominal value of KAARE KEBEL
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable TEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
BENT
Associates
REEFMATREE -
Registered and operating in the FRC:
THERRNEEERAR (M @) AR 3333200007 - — 25 5 RESBEE
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm
Co, Ltd. (note (2))
EMERRNEEBRAR (K @) (d) AR 4382000007 - — 1535 1535 EZER
Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co, RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm
Ltd. (note (a), (d))
mABE M RRERNER AR (M () AR 150,0000007C - - 20 0 ESEE
(note (b)) RMB150,000,000 Operation of wind farm
ESMASRMANER AR¥ 12000000070 - — 4161 4167 HERHERE
BRAR (M @) RMB120,000,000 Manufacture and
Wauxi CASC Energine Xindali distnbution of wind
Co, Ltd. (note (2)) turbine generators
ENRRERENEEERAF (M (@) AR 171,0700007C - — 4878 4878 [EHEE

Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co, Ltd. (note (a)) RMBI71,070,000
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41. TEMEAT - BZASR  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

E£ELESHE 2 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)
BRITEEREZ
HE/ ERExR RrgszEAt
Nominal value of KAARE REBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable IEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %
RELE
Joint ventures
REEFMRLREE
Registered and operating in the FRC:
IR ERREREDRERAR 1600000057 - - 49 49 RERERDH
AR @) () US$16,000,000 EBAG R
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Manufacture of
Management Systems Co, Ltd. (note (a), (€)) automotive engine
management systems

and components

TEMASREERBRERRAA(ME @) AR 1000000007 - - 50 50 HEEE
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind RMB100,000,000 Manufacture of
Turbine Manufacture Co, Ltd. (note (a)) wind turbine

REAAEERIRERAR AR#926100007C - — 49 9 EHEE

MzE ), (e)) RMB92,610,000 Operation of wind farm
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41. TEMBAT  BEATR

EELEEH o

@ RREEMzHIEERE -

(b) RTBEEMzEIELE -

() M2016F R20I5F12A318 K&
EERIBEERLAANEZEREE
FEP=FZ Al ARAEEFR
R AREUZARBEELRE &
ZRAERAEEMEARIAL

() M2016F R20I5F12A318 K&
EERIBEERLNAEZENEE
FEPME - Bt ARAIEFRR
AEBUZRABERTEN W
ARARAREETER 1535%# .2

BEAT -

() MRZAFMEHEBZARAALE
B REMERET HEEEL  RA
AREERRBREUZ DA FHRE
4 °

BRRFPBEKLZ ARSI ARERE L
ARBBD BRI RHSABEITLE
R -

ARAEERE - LRANZ AN
BAA BEANRAELE NYE
AEBEENAEZ TERARBRE
BAEFEZEENS - EERA - H
SIKHBATRGERTZER
SABBRIE -

BERSHA  WELTEREITER
S -

ARREZAR F2EWBARZHE
EHltEREENmE TBEAX -

BE2016F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2016

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:
(@)  Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.
(b)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

() The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed three out
of five directors to the board of directors of this company as at 31
December 2016 and 2015. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has control over the company. Accordingly, the
company is accounted for a subsidiary of the Group.

(d)  The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out
of nine directors to the board of directors of this company as at 3|
December 2016 and 2015. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has significant influence over the company.
Accordingly, the company is accounted for as a 15.35% owned associate
of the Group.

(e)  In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group and the
other shareholder have joint control of the company because decisions
on the relevant activities of the company cannot be made without both
parties agreeing.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries are all individually not

material.
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42. AATIBMBRARZER 42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
@) RREHREABHBARRRZE (@) Information about the statement of financial position of the
KaE: Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FRBEE Non-current assets
MR - BERR Property, plant and equipment 73 76
HEWB AR Investments in subsidiaries 1,398,727 1,387,319
il CENGIEA Amounts due from subsidiaries 158,502 166,704
1,557,302 1,554,099
mEBEE Current assets
H A FE WK Other receivables 2,452 3,307
JE U B B A B 3K Amounts due from subsidiaries 484,353 458,136
RITHEBERS Bank balances and cash 60,207 30924
547,012 492,367
mBaE Current liabilities
B 5 REAERK Trade and other payables 4,041 6,029
g% Borrowings 200,000 140,000
204,041 146,029
TMENVEEFE Net current assets 342,971 346,338
BESE Net assets 1,900,273 1,900,437
ERRIEE Capital and reserves
7R Share capital 436,900 436,900
R Reserves 1,463,373 463,537
R BTE Total equity 1,900,273 1,900,437
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42. FARMBRRRZEH 42.

(%)

EE 2016 12531 HIFFE

For the year ended 3| December 2016

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) RBREHRADAFEEZENE (b)  Information about the reserves of the Company at the end of the
¥ reporting period includes:
R4 EE 2B
Share Accumulated L
premium losses Total
FET FAET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
M2015% 1 A1 B At | January 2015 2,732,397 (1,355,406) 1,494,545
AEEBER Loss and total comprehensive
FEFXER expense for the year — (425) (425)
ERRANEMZIE  Dividend recognised and paid
(BfH3E13) (note 13) - (30583) - (30583)
M20I5F 12 A31H At 3| December 2015 2,732,397 86,971 (1,355,831) 1,463,537
AEEBEERER Loss and total comprehensive expense
i % for the year — — (164) (164)
M2016%F 124318 At 31 December 2016 2,732,397 86971 (1,355995) 1,463,373
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HBENEE

HZ12A31HILEEE
Year ended 31 December

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

F&T FET FET FET FE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$’000

S Turnover 989,885 [,329,644 2,699,950 2616696 2,436,821

PR A A Profit before taxation 13,354 31,438 94,280 74,854 91,688
fHia Taxation (7,933) (4,049) (1,296) (2,701) (12,364)

REZ 5= Profit for the year 5421 27,389 92984 72,153 79,324

®I12A31H
At 31 December

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

FET FET FET FET FE

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$’000

EERERE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

BERE Total assets 4,561,601 5204318 5905,267 5,698,802 6,322,715
&R Total liabilities (2,580408)  (3237,164)  (3564,538)  (3/449,874) (4,112,552)

BEFE Net assets 1,981,193 | 967,154 2,340,729 2248928 2,210,163

TEMXBRER(ER) ARDF « 2016 F#






	封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	集團財務摘要
	業務回顧
	董事及高級管理人員之個人資料
	企業管治報告書
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務資料摘要
	封底


